Frank Edelblut Christine M. Brennan
Commissioner Deputy Commissioner

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Bureau of Aduit Education
21 Scuth Fruit Street, Suite 20
Concord, NH 03301
TEL. (603) 271-6699
FAX (603) 271-3454

May 23, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Executive Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Education, Bureau of Adult Education to amend the current sole
source contract with Second Start (VC# 177224) Concord, New Hampshire by increasing the price
limitation by $30,000.00 from $203,716.38 to $233,716.38, and extending the end date to December
31, 2023, to continue to provide test center coordination services effective upon Governor and
Council approval. The original contract was approved by Governor Sununu under an Executive
Order on February 7, 2021. 100% General Funds

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the account titled Adult Education —
State in FY24 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating
budget.

Account #s FYa4
(6-56-56-562010-40390000-102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $20,000.00
06-56-56-562010-40450000-102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $10,000.00

Total | $30,000.00

EXPLANATION

This request has become sole source because there was no extension for the original contract that
was awarded through a competitive process. This extension is temporary solution while the Bureau
of Adult Education works with the test publisher to collect and disburse test center fees directly to
test centers. The contract provides test center administrative support services and recruitment and
training of new examiners. In 2021, the Department of Education changed the payment process for
the HISET exam to allow for test candidates to pay for testing services online. In order to avoid
financial hardship and possible closure of local test centers, this contractor tracks, verifies and
reimburses testing centers for administrative costs.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Executive Council
Page 2 of 2

in October, 2022 the HISET Exam was sold by Educational Testing Services to PSI Online, Inc. One
of the services that PSI offers is the ability to collect the administrative costs and disburse directly to
the test centers thus eliminating the need for this contracted service. However, PSI anticipates that it
will take up to three months to complete the required programming to pay test centers directly. The
purpose of this sole source contract extension is to avoid disruption to the current system while the
new system is being implemented.

The original contract was awarded through a Request for Proposals issued on December 13, 2020.

The Bureau of Adult Education provides high school equivalency testing services for more than
1,200 individuals each year. There are thirty-five HiISET testing centers including twelve in county
and state correctional facilities. The HISET test includes five subtests in the content areas of
Science, Social Studies, Language Arts — Writing and Mathematics.

Respectfully submitted,

oy

Frank Edelblut
Commissioner of Education
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Amendment #1 to
Second Start
Test Center Coordination Services
Professional Services Contract

Now come the New Hampshire Department of Education, hereinafter “the Agency”, and Second Start, Concord,
New Hampshire, hereinafter “the Contractor”, and pursuance to an agreement approved by the Governor on February 7,
2021, hereby agree to modify the same as follows: :
1. Amend Section 1.7 of form P-37 by removing June 30, 2023 and replacing with December 31, 2023.
2. Amend Section 1.8 of form P-37 by increasing the price limitation by $30,000.00 from $203,716.38 to $233,716.38
3. Amend Exhibit C by increasing the amount in the Limitation on Price by $30,000.00 from $203,716.38 to $233,716.38

4. Amend Exhibit C by removing the Source of Funding statement and Account Numbers and replacing with:

Source of Funding: Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the account titled Adult Education —
State FY2024 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget.

Account #s FY24
06-56-56-562010-40390000-102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $20,000.00
06-56-56-562010-40450000-102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $10,000.00

Total $30,000.00

5. All other provisions of this agreement shall remain in full force and effect as originally set forth; and
6. This amendment shall commence upon Governor and Council approval and shall terminate on December 31, 2023.

This modification of an existing agreement is hereby incorporated by reference to the existing agreement by the parties
and must be attached to the said agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the parties, hereto have set their hands as of the day and yead first above written.
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THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
Department of Education
Division of Learner Support

Division of Leamer Syp J

By: Qj 6/7/2023

Frank Edelblut, Commissioner of Education Date

Second Stad
Nams of Corporation E ontractor)
m Mealey, Execulive-Director Date

Approved as to form, substance and execution by the Attorney General this _ 7 day of June 2023

O S —

Elizzbeth Brown, Attorney General's Office

Approved by the Govemor and Council this day of , 2023

By:




State of New Hampshire

Department of State

concermed,

Busincn [ 63173
Cenificae Nomber: 0004877169

[NTESTD-(ONYMER.EOF.
ihnunmmyhmdu\dmnbu.ﬁud
hSdcflblSmowaW
Wis IRt day of Apeil AD, 2020, -

L hd

Wilkiem M. Gurnoer
Sceretary of Suve



Certificate of Authority tCorporaiion, Nen-Prgtit Corporation)

r Re

1, Joe Shoemaker, hercby certify that 1 am duly elected President, Board of Directors of

Second Start. 1 hereby certify the following is a.true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board
of Directors/shareholders, duly called and held on May 22, 2023, at which a quorum of the

Directors/sharcholders were present and voting.

VOTED: ThatBill Mealey, Executive Director of Second Start is

duly authorized to enter into contracts or agreements on behalf of Second Start, with

the Stafe of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is
authorized to cxccutc any documents which may in his/her judgment be desirable or

necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealced and remains in full force
and efTect as of the date of the contract to which this certificate is attached. This authority
remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Corporate Resolution. | further certify
that it 1s understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as.cvidence that
the person(s) listcd above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and. that they have full
authority to bind the corporation. To the cxtent that there arc any limits on the authority of any
listed individual to hind the corporation in contructs with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are cxpressly stated herein. . i
- iy ()

. TResipon T

I A /. !
(Name & Title)

3

DATED: 5 F¥ 3 ATTEST: WL/




ACORD'

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MMDO/YYYY}
01032023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) snust have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statemsnt on
this certificate does not confor rights to the certificate hotder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER
E &S Insurance Saervices LLC
21 Meadowbrook Lane

SSNTACT  Elsanor Spinazzola

PHONE

. (603)293-2791 | (A% woy. (803)293-7188

Mt sg. Eleancrspinazzolagbesinsuranca.net

P O Box 7425 INSURER(E) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Gliford NH 03247-7425 | wenera; AMTrust Financial Services, Inc.
INSURED msurerp: Technology Insurance Co 42376
Sacond Start MEURERC :
INSURER E
Concord NH 03301 INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:  22-23 ’ REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF AN'Y CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TQ ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
TYPE OF INSURANCE MED POLICY NUMBER (MMDOYYYY) | (MDD YYY) LaTS
D] COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIARD TY EACH OCCURRENGE s 1,000,000
/
cuamsce [ > ocoun | PREMISES (Eg peryance) | 3 1000000
| | MED EXP (Any ons person) s 20,000
A 7] Y [— 12131/2022 | 1213172023 | pepgona s aovinuury | g 1,000,000
GEMLAGGREGATE UMIT APPLICS PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 3.000,000
povey B8 [ e PRODUCTS - coMPOPAGG | 3 3.000.000
OTHER: Employee Bandfits s 1,000,000
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (F romany YO LM 5 1,000,000
> ANy Ao BODILY INJURY (Par parson) | §
| OWNED SCHEDULED
B | | AUTos omy TS 12/31/2022 | 12/31/2023 | BODILY INJURY {Per sccidert) | $
HIRED NON-OWNED [ TROPERTY GAMAGE s
|| autos oney AUTOS ONLY | (Per pccident)
Uninsurad motorist s 1,000,000
<] UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCOURRENCE s 2,000,000
A ExcEss Las PR— _ 121312022 | 12312023 [ eneoare s 2.000,000
peo | < revenmon 3 10.000 s
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ST | Sne | TS
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTREREXEGUTIVE T E.L. EACHACCIDENT H
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? a—
(Mancstory [n RH) EL DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE | 8
1 yos, SUICTION wicer
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS betow E.L DISEASE - poUCYLMT |8
Aggregate $100,000
Cyber Liabii
p | CyerLibilty I_ 123172022 | 123172023

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS | VEHICLES (ACORD 41, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be sttachad if more spece Is required)
Cartificate Holdar I3 an additional Insured (CGL) as required by signed contract with the named insured.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of NH Commissioner of Education Division of Leamer Services
Bureau of Aduk Education :
101 Plaasant St

Concord NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THERECF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORITED REPRESENTATIVE

iy Kormedle,

ACORD 25 (2018/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and iogo are reglsterad marks of AGORD




Issue Date 05/25/2023

Granite State Healthcare
and Human Service Trust

This certificate is issued as a matter of information only
and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This
certificate does not amend, extend or alter the coverage

PO Box 4197 afforded by the policies below.

Concord, NH o3302-4197

Certificate Of Insurance

'CERTIFICATE HOLDER

State of NH, Commissioner of Education Companies Affording Coverage

Division of Learner Services pr—

. 2 The Granite State Healthcare And Human
Bureau of Adult Education LETTER A o ices Self-Insured Group Trust
101 Pleasant St COMPANY

Concord. NH 03301 LETTER B  Midwest Employers Casualty Corp.

This policy is effective on 1/1/2023 13:00 AM, and will expire on 1/1/2024 12:00 AM. This policy will automatically be
renewed unless notified by either party by October 1st of any fund year.

COVERAG ES

P ¥, : e T £

Lla. . L Il

This is to certify that the Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance has been issued to the insured
named abave for the policy period indicated, not withstanding any requirement, term or condition of any contract or
‘other document with respect to which this certificate may be issued or may pertain, the insurance afforded by the policies
described herein is subject to all the terms, exclusions and conditions of such policies.

Type of ) Policy Policy LIMITS
Insurance/Carrier Policy Number Effective Expiration
Workers’ Compensation : W/C Statutory Limnits
e Liabili :
; Em.t.ﬂov" : L".‘bl - ' o AM " AM E.L. Each Accident $1,000,000
The Granite Stap; l:lealthcare 1/2023 12:00 1/1/2024 12:00 E.L. Disease - Pol Limit |$1,000,000
.And Human Services Self-
Insured Group Trust E.L. Disease - Each Emp|s1,000,000
‘Excess Insurance Workers' Compensation Statutory
¥ 1/1/2023 12:00 AM 1/1/2024 12:00 AM

Midwest Employers Casualry Corp 3 24 Employer's Liability 5. 0001000

Description of Qperations: [ Excluded Officer

Covering operations of the insured during the policy term. Per NH Law, additional
insured and waiver of subrogation are not allowed on workers' comp. COls

. 5 . -

MEMBER - > CANCELLATION

Second Start Should any of the above descnbed policies be canceled
17 Knight Street - *  before the expiration date théreof, the i issuing company will -
Concord, NH 03301 endeavor to mail 30 days written notice to the certificate E

holder named: to the left, but failure to mail such notice shall ~_
impose no obligation or liability of any kind upon the
company, its agents or representatives. '

Mo —

: ._ % 05/25/2023, -_15 s

" 1
Authonzed Representative Date :

arm s b g b b, g s
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
T the Board ol Directors ol Second Stan

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Second Start (a nonprofit organization),
which comprise the statements ol (inancial position as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related
statements of activitics and changes in net assets, functional expenses, and cash [lows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the hnancial statements.

In our opinton, the financial statements referred to above present faicly, in all material respects. the
financial position of Second Start as of June 30.'2022 and 2021. and the changes in its net asscts and
its cash tlows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States ol America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of Amcrica. Qur responsibilities under those standards arc further described in the Audiror’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We arc required 10 be
independent of Sccond Start and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
relevan: ethical requirements relating to our audits, We helicve that the audit evidence we have oblained
is sufTicient and appropriate to provide a basis or our audit opinion.

Management's Responsibility for the Fivanciol Statiements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of (he Nnancial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and mamenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial siatements that are (ree from material misstatement, whether due te fraud or

e17or.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregare, that rmise substantial doubt about Second Star’s ability to
continuc ns o going concern within one year afier the date that the financial statements are available 10
be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilitics for the Andit of the Financial Statementy

Our objectives are 10 obtain reasonabie assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from matcrial misstatement, whether duc to fraud or crror, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guaranice that an audit conducted in accordance with gencrally accepted auditing
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting {from (raud is higher than for one resulting from crror, as fraud inay involve
collusion, forgery, intentional mmnissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatemwnts, including omissions, are considered material i there is o substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user hased
on the financial statements.

NUMBERS TALK. WE TRANSLATE,

MASON +« RICH
 Cerdified Public decvaniiss
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e Identily and asscss the nisks ol material misstatement of the Nnancial statements, whether due
to lmud or errar, and design and perform audit procedures responsive 1o those nisks. Such
procedures clude examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclysures
in the financial statemems,

e Obtain an understanding ol internal control relevant o the audit in order 10 design audit
procedures that are approprate in the circumstances, but not for the pumose of expressing an
opinion on the etfectiveness of Second Start’s internal comtrol. Accordingly. no such opinion
1s expressed. i

¢  Evaluale the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
acceunting estimales made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
tinancial statements.

s Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or cvents, considered in the aggErepale,
that raise suhstantial doubt about Second Start’s ability to continue as a-going concern tor a
reasonable period of hime.

We are required to communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters,
the planncd scope and timing of the audit, sigmificant audit findings, and cemain intemnal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Report on Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the pumose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as o whele.
The schedules of suppont and revennes, expenses and changes in net assets are presenied for purposes
of additional anatysis and are not a required part of the financial sttements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly 1o the underlying accounting,
and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
anditing procedures applied in the audit ol the financial statements and cortain additional procedures,
including companng and reconciling such information dircctly to the underlying accounting and ather
records used to prepare the financial statements or (o the financial statements themsclves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. [n our opinion, the informarion is fairly staed in all material respects in relation (o the
tinancial siatements as a whole.

Very truly vours,
'7757/&0—&_?"" ; CA ) PA?'

MASON + RICH PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION
Certified Public Accountanis

Concord, New Hampshire

Octoher 21, 2022




r SECOND START
' STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

ASSETS
I 2022 2021
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivatents S 1,305,094 S 1,184,121
Accounts Receivable 59,885 42,351
ERC Receivable 156,439 -
; Cirants Receivable 279,985 225,180
Prepaid Expenses 10,031 56,013
Total Current Asxers 1,811.434 1,507,605
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and Equipment 3,286,324 3,215,629
Less Accumudated Depreciation {},840.243) (1.750,859)
Net Praperty and Fquipment 1.446.281 i,464770
' TOTAL ASSETS $ 3257715 S 2972435
\ LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
]
CURRENT LIABILITIES
' Accounts Payable S 54 802 ) 82,940
: Accrued Expenses 215,154 215,832
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt ' 11,032 -
-t Deferred Revenue - Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) Loan - 188,136
_ Deferred Contributions - CCASP 183,062 -
Other Deferred Kevenue 13.646 65.735
Lt Toiat Current Liabilities 477,696 552,663
} LONG-TERM LIABILITHES
[ Long-Term Debt 35,696 -
Tortal Long-Term Liubilities 35,696 -
(]
Ly TOTAL LIABILITIES r 513,392 552,663
i
NET ASSETS
L Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 2,739,325 2419772
Net Asscts With Donor Restrictions 5.000 -
L TOTAL NET ASSETS 2,744,323 2419772
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS § 3237715 §  2,972.435
The Accompuanying Notes are an iniegral Part of These Financiol Statements
L - Poye 3 -




B SECOND START
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CITANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR
RESTRICTIONS SUPPORT AND REVENUE
Grants from Governmental Agencies - $ 1,494985 S 1,345384
Private Fees 799.227 695,050
Fces from Governmenial Agencics 1,130.332 1.027.464
Govemment Assistance - COVID-19 Funding 450,226 747925
Misceliancous Income 19213 20,553
Privawe Grants 6,000 14,000
Contributions of cash and other financial assets 20,021 35,081
Contributions of nonfinancizl assets 23,900 18,900
United Way 21,328 24,016
Interest Income 753 804
Total Support and Revenuc 3,965,985 3929177
NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS
Satisfaction of Program Restrictions 10,000 -
: Total Net Assets Released from Restrictions 10,000 -
TOTAL SUPPORT, REVENUE, AND OTHER NET
ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 373985 3929177
FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES AND LOSSES
Functional Expenses
Program Services 3,265,573 3,117,878
& Management and Geaceral 393,591 395,742
Total Functional Fxpenses 3,659,164 3,513,620
" Other {Income) Expenses
{Gain} Loss on Disposal of Property and Equipmen (2.730) 4,610
L, TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES AND LOSSES S 3,656,434 5 3,518,230
P |
L
Lt
LJ ' (Contirued on next page)

Th;‘ Accompanying Notes are an fl?:l.' ru! pdfl :.'l".‘hest j:i.ﬂﬂ!icfﬁf SI(”{’J"CJIL\'
prritying & J
- Pege 4 -
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SECOND START

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES [N NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

22 2021
INCREASE {DECREASE) INTOT4L NET
ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 319,351 $ 410,947
CHANGE IN ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Donor Resiricted Support and Revenue i5.000 -
Net Assets Released tfrom Restrictions (10,000)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS
iITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 5,000
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN TOTAL NET ASSETS 324,551 410.947
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 2419,772 2,008,825
NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR 2.744.32) § 2419772
The dccompanytng Notes are an Imtegrad Part of These Financial Staicments
- Page 3
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SECOND START

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED IUNE 30, 2022

Program Manngement
Servicex and Cieneral Fundraising Totn)

Advertising s 02w $ 100 $ - b3 2800
Conference and Meeting 27,174 - 27174
Depreciation 102,098 30,374 132,472
Bad Debt 2,080 = 2,080
Dues and Membership 14,976 4,488 - 19464
Employee Benefits 207,743 33,285 - 241,028
Information Technology 16,951 6,345 - 23.296
Instructional Materials 3,603 - - 5,603
Insurance . 44294 3,308 + 47 602
Intcrest 454 - - 454
Miscellancous 21.667 - 21.667
Occupancy 109,514 27,338 s 136852
Office 9412 7.692 - 17,104
Payroll Taxes 157,928 15,763 - 173.691
Professional Fees 263,063 20,512 283,575
Salaries and Wages 2,127,326 239 678 . 2,367 004
Stafl Development 6,544 - 0,544
Stipends and Discounts 4,081 - - 4,081
Supplics 124939 4,501 - 129,440
Travel 17,534 207 17,741

Total Functional Expenxes S 3,265,573 s 393,591 3 - $ 36359164
The Accompanying Notes are an fntegral Purt of These Financial Statements

-Paye 6 -
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SECOND START
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Program Management
Services and General Fundraising Tatal

Advertising $ 2,426 $ 196 b - $ 2.622
Conterence and Meeting 21918 - - 21918
Depreciation 84,025 35,840 - 119,865
Bad Debt 1,505 - - 1.303
Dues and Membership 11,400 4,887 - 16.287
Employee Bencefits 221,693 27.658 246,350
Information ‘Technolagy 16,931 6416 - 23327
Instructional Matenals 7.506 R L 7.506
Insurance 42,657 3 884 - 46,541
Miscellancous 831 516 3 1,347
Occupancy 126,122 32.046 - 158,168
Office 10,037 5,450 - 15,487
Payroll Taxes 153.345 17,368 - 170.713
Professional Fees 151,210 19,842 . 171,082
Salarics and Wages 2078519 238,586 - 2315105
StatT Development 6,194 363 = €.557
Stipends and Discounts 180 - : 150
Supplics 169,136 2,690 3 171.826
Travet 13,243 - 12.243

Toral Functional Expenses $  3,117.878 s 395,742 3 0 3513620

The Accompanying Notes ore un Integrel Purt of These Financial Statements

] Pﬂ_i_.’r.‘ 7.




SECOND START
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THEE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

s

L)

Lt

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Incrcase {Decrcasc) in Nel Assels

Adjustmenis to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net
Cash Provided by {Used in) Operating Activitics:

2022 200

324,551 b3 410,947

Depreciation Expense 132,472 119,865
(Gain) Loss on Disposal of Property and Fquipment (2,730) 4,610
(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:
Accounts Reccivable (17,534) (3.329)
ERC Receivable (156,439) -
Grants Reccivable (54,805) (115,223)
Prepaid Expenses 45,982 (31,882)
[n¢rease (Decrease) in Operating Liabilitics:
Accounts Payable (28,138) 76,331
Accrucd Expenses (678) (204)
Deferred Revenue - Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) Loan (188,156) (124,741)
Deferred Revenue - CCASP £83,062 -
Other Deterred Contributions and Revenue (52.089) 47,694
Total Adjustments (139,083) {26,879)
Nct Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 185.498 354.068
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
PProceeds from Disposal ol Propenty and Equipment 2,730 .
Purchases of Property and Equipment (58,168) {73,062)
Net Cuslt Pravided by (Used in} Investing Activities (55,438) (73.062)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of Notes Payable {9.087) -
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activitiés (9,087) -
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 120,973 311,006
1,154,121 ¥73.115

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

1.305.094  § 1,184,121

The Accompenying Notes are an Integral Part of These Financial Statcments
panying &

{Continucd on next poge)
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SECOND START
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

22 2021

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information;

Vash Mand Dunng the Year Foe

laterest b 434 ) -

Noncash Investing and Financing Activiries:

Assets Acquired by Assumption of Deb: 53,813 -

Debt Assumed 10 Acquire Assets (35815 -
Cash Paid for Property and Equipment Acquired with Debt g - S -
Fhe Accompanying Notes are an fnteyrol Fart of These Financial Statements
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SECOND START
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A | NATURE OF ACTIVITIES
Second Start (the “Organization™} is a private nonprofit cducation corporation which has been in
cxistence since 1970. Second Start is comumitted 1o improving the cconomic and educational wellbeing
of New Hampshirc residents. Its goal is to help people become more productive workers, family
members, and community citizens. Within these opportunities, the Organization offers a variety of
programs, each serving participants in ways thal meet their needs.

The programs availablc at Second Start are as follows:

Speccial Education — The Special Education Program was established in 1979 and accounts for the
proceeds of an education program that serves coded special nceds studenis ages 14-21 from local school
districts in the greater Concord arca.

Transitional Employment Training Program (TET) — The TET Program was cstablished in 1984 and
accounts for procceds and cxpenses uscd to provide a vocationally oriented program designed 1o
develop personal and social responsibility, workforce readiness, and provide experiential training and
coursework for adolescents.

Alternative High Scheol - The Altemative High School Program was csiablished in 1976 and accounts
for the procceds and cxpenses of an alternative academic program for adolescenis previously
unsuccessful in public high school programs. Studenis are not coded for special education services.

Student Assistance Program (SAP) — The Student. Assistance Program is a drug education, prevention,
ind carly identilication program desipned Tor public school students. The Student Assistance Program
was started in 1984 and accounts for the proceeds and expenses associated with the siadent assisiance
services for the toeal school districts as well as programs for the Second Start Aliernative High Schonl
and speaial educanion students.

Aduli Edneation and Literacy (AFL) = The Adult Fducation and Literacy Program includes both Aduit
Razic Education (ARE) and Adult Leamer Services (ALS). The ARE Program was established in 1971
and accounts for the proceeds and expenses for providing remedial academic programs for adulis from
the most basic levels through preparation for the High School Fquivalency Exam (HiSET) as well as
English as a second language classes. The program also includes academic and vocational counseling
tor students. The program includes fees and expenses for providing RIiSET Testing services and
administering staft development for ARF/ESE. 1eachers statewide. The ALS Program was cstablished
in 1983 and accounts for procceds and expenses used to help adults increase their rending and math
skills through the aid of volunteer tutors. This program also includes services to foreign-speaking and
retugee students 10 increase their English skills. Under this program, thc Organization also must
comply with the regulations outhined in the Workforce Innovation and Opporntunity Act.

{Continiecd on next pugiz)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Dav Care Program = The Day Care Program was cstablished in 1973 and accoumts for proceeds and
expenses used 1o care for children (ages 6 weeks to [2 years) of the general community while their
parents arc in classes, training progras, or working during the day. This program also includes services
to protective custody referrals from the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Scrvices.

Welcoming Concord — The Welcoming Concord program was established in 2015 and accounts for
procecds and cxpenses used to increase social inclusion and integration of inwnigrants and refugees in
targeted New Hampshire communities,

B I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This summary of significant accounting policies of the Organization is presented to assist in
understanding these financial statements. The financial statements and notes arc the representations of
the Organization’s management who is responsible for their integrity and objectivity. These accounting
policies conform to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States of America
and have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements.

Baxis of Accounting

The Organization uses the accrual basis of accounting in its financial statements. Under this basis,
revenue is recopized when earned rather than when payment is received. and cxpenses and purchases
of asscts are recognized when the obligation is incurred rather than when the cash ts disbursed.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements and related disclosures in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
atfect certain amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results
experienced by the Organization may difter [rom management’s estimales.

Cush and Cash Equivalents .
For purposcs of the statement of cash Oows, cash includes cash on hand, [unds on deposit with financial
institutions, and invesunents with original maturitics of three months or less.

Caontract Assets and Liabilities

Avconnis Receivable - Trade

Accounis receivable consisis of private fees due from the daycare program and revenue from school
districts for various programs. Accounts reccivable arc stated at the amounl management expects (0
collect from outstanding balances. Management considers accounts delinquent based on the date of
unpaid invoices. Past due receivables are written off at management’s discretion using the direct write
off method: this is not considered a departure from accounting principles generally aceepted in the
United Stales because the effects of the dircet write off method approximate thosc of the allowance
method. All accounts are considered to be collectible, The Organtzalion does not accrue interest on past

due accounts receivable.

(Continued on next page)
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SECOND START
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenuc repredents payments received from customers prior to the satisfaction of the
corresponding performance obligations. Revenue is recognized once the corresponding performance
abligations are satisfied based on the contract with the customer.

Grants Receivable
Grants receivable are amounts due for reimbursement from various grant agencics. No allowance is

recorded because all amounts are expected to be fully reimbursed by the federal and state governmens.
Interest is not allowed and 1s not accrued on any past duc grants receivablesbalances.

Unconditional Pledges Receivable

Unconditional promises to give arc stated at the amount managemoent cxpects o colleet from
outstanding balances. Management cvaluates the collectability of customer accounts by considering
factors such as historical experience, the age of the promise Lo give, and current cconomic conditions
that may affect a customer’s ability to pay. Past duc promises to give are written olf at nanagement’s
discretion using the dircet write off method; this is not considered a departure from accounting
principles geneenlly aceepled in the United States beeanse the eifects of the divect write ofF imctinnd
approximate those ol the allowance method. The Organization docs not charge interest an past dug

promtises o give.

Praperry and Equipment

The Organization’s property and equipment palicy is to eapitalize individual purchases, renewnls and
betterments in excess of $1,000. Maimenance. repairs and minor renewals are charged to expense as
incurred. Periodically, management evaluates property and cquipment for impairment when cvents or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such asscls mny not be recavernble,
When tiems of property and equipment are sold or retired, the related cost and accumulaled depreciation
are ramoved from the accounts and any gain or loss is included in the staicment of income, These items
are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Fumiture and Equipment 5 years

Leaschold Improvemcnts 5 - 30 yeurs

Building 40 years
Ner Assety

The-Organization reports s net assets as required by Financial Accouniing Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14, Nor-for-Profit Entities (Topic 9358): Presentation of
Financial Starentents of Not-for-Frofit Endities. Under ASU 2016-14, the Organization is required 1o
report information regarding its financial position and activities accounting 10 the following classes:
net asscts without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restnictions. Descriptions of the net asset
categories included in the Organization’s financial stalements are as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions include revenues and expenses and contribulions which
arc not subject 1o any donor imposed restrictions. Nei assets wilhout donor restrictions ¢an be
designated by the Board of Directors for speeial projects and expenditures.

(Comtinued on next puge)
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Net assets with donor restrictions include-contnibutions lor which time restirictions or donor-
imposed restrictions have not vet been met. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified 10 net assets without donor restrictions and reporied in the statement
of activities as net asseis released from restriction. Net assets with donor restrictions also
include gifts which require, by donor restriction, that the corpus be invested in perpetuity and
only the income or portion thercfore (cxcluding gains restricted by state statute) be made
availuble for program operations in accordance with donor restrictions.

Contributions and Promises to Give

Contributions are recognized under FASB ASU 2018-08, Not-For-Profit Eniities (Topic 958):
Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Keceived and Contributions
Made. Under this ASU, contributions are nol rccognized as revenue if there are donor-imposcd
conditions and barriers that must be overcome before the Organization is entitled to the assets
transferred. Conditional contributions can exist if the Organization has limited discretion over how the
resources are spent and the contributor retains a right of retum to the resources provided if the
conditions arc not met. If contributions are reccived prior to the satisfaction of the donor-imposed
cenditions and barmiers, the advanced receipt of funds would be recorded as deferred revenue on the
statcment of financial position, Once conditions have been substantially met, the contributions are
recognized as revenue and classified as net assets with or without donor restrictions depending on

remaining donor restrictions.

Deferred comributions were $183,062 for the year ended June 30, 2021. There were no deferred
contributions for the vear ended Junc 30, 2022. Deferred revenue [rom exchanpe {ransactions was
$13,646 and $65,735 for the ycars ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Revenue Recognition Pelicy

The Organization recognizes revenue under FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 606,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers, from its First Start Children’s Center, adolescent services,
adult education services, and New American Driving School.

All of the Organization’s contracts are one year or less. A deseription of relevant contracts is below:,

The First Start Children’s Center provides childcare services for early education, preschool, and
elementary age students from the greater Concord area in a full-service childcare center. Revenue
generated from childcare services is primarily comprised ol direct weekly tuition payments from
parents and fees subsidized by the State of New Hampshire. Revenue from childcare services are
considered one performance obligation although services provided to thestudents may include a variety
of academic and extracurricular activities that cater to the needs of the students.

(Cantined on next page)
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Dayeare revenue is recognized over time as long as the student is enrolled in the program. Tuition is
hilled on a weekly basis and 1he Organization has an enforceable right 1o payment until the time the
student provides natice of cancellation even if the child is ahsent due ta personal time or sickness.
Childeare services can be cancelled at any time; however, the customer is responsible for the tuition
and/or expenses incurred by the Qrganization prior 1o cancellalion. Refundable deposits are collected
prior to cnrollment in order 10 hotd a child®s place in the program and arc included in deferred revenue
on the statement of financial position. Revenue is recognized from deposits if the child has an
outstanding balauce upen lcaving the program er if the family docs not natify the Organization of
cancellation of cnrollinent within two weeks from the preferred start date. Overall, there is no
significant impact fromn deposits to the Onancial statements. Stbling discounts of 10% of the lower
wition is offered to familics; however, the discount cannot be applicd 10 any additional fees such as late
fees. In addition, stafl can receive an additional 13% discount, adjusted after any sibling discount
received. There is no significant impact from discounts to the financial statements as they arc
recognized weekly and are not dependent on past or future services.

The Organization provides educational programs to adolescent students through their Alternative High
School (AHS), Transitional Employment and Training programs (TET), and Swdent Assistance
Programs (SAPs). Services for the AHS, TET, and SAP programs are offered to students through the
Organization’s on-site classrooms and through off-site SAP instructional programs administered at
local school districts in the greater Concord area. The Depantment of Education sets a fixed fee rate for
special education, which is part of the AHS program. Revenuc from adolescent programs is considered
a single performance obligation although services provided to the students may include a variety of
academic, extracurricular, and counseling activities that cater to the needs of the students. The
QOrganization has a contract with a local school district to provide on-site AHS, TET, and SAP services
to a sct number of students that is renewed for every academic year. The fees 1o provide these services
are established prior to the school year are paid to the Orgamization bi-annually. The Organization can
also provide these services under contracts with local school districts whereby tuition is bascd on the
number of students cnrolled. Revenue for these services s billed and consumed within the
Organization’s {iscal year.

Additionally, the Organization has contracis with local school districts to provide otf-site SAPs during
a specific number of schools during the academic year. The fees to provide these services are
esiablished prior o the school year and ar¢ paid to the Organization on a monthly basis as services are
provided.

The Organization provides educational programs to adult students through their High School
Fquivalency Test (HiSET) preparation, Adult Diploma programs; English as a Sccond Language
classes, and Adult Learner Services that provide tutoring and onc-on-one assistance to New Hampshire
residents. These programs arc offered to student through the Organization’s on-sitc or vinual
classrooms. Revenue from adult programs is considered a single performance obligation although
services provided to the students may include a variety of academic and instructional activitics that
cater 1o the needs of the students. Revenue is recogmized over time for these services.

{Conttnued on next page)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-

The Organization is also a st admunistration center for students (o test lor their HiSET adminisiered
by the Educational Testing Service (E1S). Tests are scheduted over the course of two days and
appointments and exam fees are adminisicred by ETS. HISET testing is considered a single obligation
as the Organization is only responsible for administering the fest to participants, Revenue from HiSET
testing is recognized at the point in time and is received once the participant has completed the test.

The Organization provides driver education classes to New American adults through an cight week
course that includes classroom instruction and in<car driving obscrvation. T'he cost of the course can be
pdid in full at the time of registration or in three equal installments over the course of the instruction.
Services providcd through the New American Driving School is considered a single obligation because
both classroom and in-car driving abservation is required in order to receive a driver's Jicense through
the Staie of New Hampshire. Revenue is recognized over time as the students receive the benefits of
the program. Overall. revenue received from the New American Driving School is immaterial 10 the
financial statements. i

All of the Organization’s conlracts arc onc year or less in length. As a result, costs associated 10 obtain
a conlracl is recognized as expense in the period incurred. The quoted transaction prices for childcare

services and (uition fees do not include variable considerations and there is no allocation of discounts

or non-cash considerations, ‘The Organization does not have any significanmt financing components to
s contracts. The input method is used for all proprams that are recognized over time based on the
number of students enrolled.

Functional Allacation of FExpenses

The costs of providing the Organization’s program and other activities have been summarized on the
functional basis in the statement of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the programs and supporting services benefited. Salaries and related expenses.are allocated 1o
the various program and supponing services hased on actual or estimated time ecmployees spend on
each function. The remaining expenses are specifically allocated whenever practical, and depreciation
is allocated bascd on space utilization. General administrative expenses are allocated 1o each program
based on the direct expenscs incurred for each program or estimated usage based on time spent on each
function of the staff.

Donated Materials and Services

Contributed goods and services arc reported at their fair value if such goods or services create or
enhance non-financial assets, or would have been purchased if not provided by contribution, and for
services which arc provided by individuals possessing specialized skills. A number of volunteers have
made contributions of their time and talent, or contributed goods to develop the Organization's
programs. Howevcr, these services do not mect the eriteria for recognition as contributed services and,
therefore, arc not reflecied in the financial statements,

Contributed propenty and equipment is recorded at fair value at the dale of donation. 1f donors stipulate
how long the assets must be used, the comributions arc recorded as restricted support. in the absence
of such stipulation, contributions of propeny and equipment are recorded as unrestricted support. ‘1'he
Organization received no contributed propenty for the years ended Junc 30, 2022 and 2021.

(Continued on next page)
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Advertising
The Organization conducts non-direct response advertising. These costs arc expensed as incurred.
Advertising costs were $2,292 and $2,622 [or the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Income Taxes
Management evaluates its tax position in accordance with FASB Accounting Standards Codification

{ASC) 740-10, Accounting for Uncertain Tax Positions, which prescribes a recognition threshold and
measurement aftribute for financial statement recognition and mcasurement of a tax position taken or
expected 1o be taken in a tax return and also provides guidance on various related matters such as de-
recogmition, interest, penalties, and disclosures required. The Organization's policy is to recognize
imcrest and penalties related 1o unrecognized tax benefits as'tax expense.

C | ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARD

L}

In May 2014, FASB cstablished ASC Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. ASC 606
and all subsequently issued clarifying ASUs replaced most existing revenue recognition guidance in
GAAD The ASC also required expaanded disclosures eelated 1o the nature, amount, time, and
uncertaingy of revenue and cash lows arising from contracts with customers, The Organization adopted
the new stadard elfective July 1, 2020, using the modified retrospective approach.

As part of the adoption of ASC 606, the Organization clected the following transitional practical
expedients: (i) w reflect the aggregaie ol all contract modilications 1hat occurred prior (o the date of
inittal application when identifying satisficd and unsatisficd performance obligalions, delermining the
transaction price, and allocating the transaction price; and (i) o apply the standard only o contructs
that are not completed at the initial date of application. Because contract modificalions are minimal,
there is not a significant impact as a result of cleeting these practical expedients.

Management has assessed the impact of ASC 606 and has determined that ASC 606 would have no
materiad tmpact in the timing or measurement of revenues based upon gutdance. As a result, there were
ne material eitects on the Organization’s financial stalements in the year of implementation.

D | GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND RELIEF

Paycheck Pratection Pragram (PPFP) .

On February 25, 2021, the Qrganization received loan proceeds (the second draw) in the amount of
£490,310 (or the year ended June 30, 2021, under the Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP™). The PPP,
established as pant of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act ("CARES Act™),
provides for loans to qualifying businesses up to 2.5 times the average monthly payroll expenses of the
qualifying business. The entire principal amount and any accrucd interest on the loan is eligible for
forgiveness to the extent the proceeds were usced for eligible purposes, including payroll, cmployce
benefits. and other eligible payments. Additionally, the Organization was required to maintain certain
pavroll tevels and emplovee levels, Amounts not meeting this eriterin are considered to be a loan and
require repayment.

{Continued on next page)
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Management applicd for and received the funds with the intent that the funds would be expended in a
manner that would qualify for forgiveness and thercfore elected to record the proceeds of the PPP loan
as an in-substance government grant. Under this method, the PPP loan is tnitially. recognized as a
deferred income liability. Subsequently, the Organization reduced the liability and rccognized grant
income on the statements of activitics and changes in net assets as the Organization recognized the
related cxpenses for which loan forgiveness is allowed. The Organization spent all of the PPP |
$486,100 procceds for qualifying cxpenses and was fully forgiven by the Small Business
Administration {(SBA) as of June 30, 2021. The Organization spent all of the PPP 2 $490,310 proceeds
for qualifying expenses and was fully forgiven by the SBA as of Junc 30, 2022.

For the years ended Junc 30, 2022 and 2027, the Organization spent $188,156 and $6150352 of
qualifying expenses against PPP 1 and PPP 2 loans. The amount of deferrcd income liability rclated to
the PPP loans was $188,156 for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Employee Retention Credit (ERC)

The Organization applicd for the Employee Retention Credit (ERC) for the ycar ended June 20, 2022
in the amount of $156,438. The receivable for the FRC is recorded on the Statement of Financial
Position as of June 30, 2022.

Other COVID-19 Grants

On March 29, 2021, the Organization was approved for a Coronavirus Response and Relief
Supplemental Appropriations Act (CRRSA) grant from the New Hampshire Department of Health and
Human Services totaling $53,200. This grant award is based on qualifying expenses incurrcd and
income losses incurred for the year ended Junc 30, 2022, The Organization docs not belicve there are
any remaining restrictions or requirements for this grant. All funding was fully expended in the year
ended June 30, 2022. As a result, the entire amount, totaling $53,200, was recognized as income for the
year ended June 30, 2022,

On September 2, 2021, the Organization was approved for the New Hampshire Department of Health
and Human Services Child Care Achicving Stabilization Program (CCASP) grant in the amount of
$233,229 (including incentive add-ons). This funding was reccived from the American Rescue Plan
Act (ARPA) for the state being administercd through the Federal Administration for Children and
Families. Office of Child Care. This grant award is basced on qualifying opcrating cxpenscs incurred
including at ledst 25% of expenditures being spent on staff incentives (such as wage increases, staff
bonuses, and added employec benefits). A portion of the grant ($§180,797) was recorded as delerred
revenuce and was not expended as of Junc 30, 2022, This award and its expenditures must comply with
the scope of allowable funds as detailed in the grant agreement.

(Continued on next pagc)
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E I ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, CONTRACT ASSETS, AND LIABILITIES

The timing of revenue recognition, billings, and cash collections resulted in billed accounts receivable
and deferred contributions and revenue on the Statements of Financial Position. Amounts are billed as
scrvices progress in accordance with agreed-upon contractual terms at monthly periodic intervals.
Generally, billing occurs concurrent o revenue recognition, resulting in no contract assets. However,
sometimes the Organization receives advance deposits from ils customers, before revenue is
recognized, resulting in deferred contributions and revenue (contract liabilitics). These advanced
contributions are liquidated when revenuc is recognized.

2022 2021 Change
Accounts Receivable SIESS 8 4235 S 17,334
Other Deferred Revenue 13,646 65,735 (52,089)

The Organization cxpects to collect all of the consideration under their contracts. Accounts Receivable
increased by $17,534 for the year cnded June 30, 2022 due to timing. Other deferred contributions and
revenue deereaved by $52,080 mainly due to timing.

F|  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consists of the following at June 30

_ 2022 2021

Building and Improvements S 1,736222 5 1,717,616
Leaschold Improvements 1.000,025 965,245
Land 210,000 210,000
Fumiturc and Equipment 340,277 322,763
Tatal Property und Equipment 3,286,524 3,215,629
L_ess Accumulated Depreciation (1,840.243) {1.750,859)
Net Property and Equipment S 1430281 8 1464700

Depreciation expense was §132.472 and $119,865 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

G| LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization maintains a revolving line of eredit agreement with a local bank, whicl provides that
it may borrow up to $600,000 a1 Junc 30, 2022 and 2021. The interest fate formula is based at 0.50%
over the Wall Street Journal prime rate, which was 5.23% and 3.75% at June 30, 2022 and 2021,

respectively. The agreement s collateralized by all business asseis ol the Organization. The
Organization had no outstanding balance as of June 30, 2022 and 2021.

{Continued an next page)
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H| LONG-TERM DERT

The Organizazion’s long-term debt consists of the following at June 30:

2022 2021
Installment note pavable to NH lHealth and Education Facilities
Authoriy, pavable in monthly principal and interest
irstallments of 8934 with interest at a rate of 1.00% per annum.
Secured by vehicle. S 46,728
Total Long-Term Debt 46,728 -
Less Current Porion of Long-Term Debt (11,631 E
Long-Term: Debt, Net of Current Portion Y 33,695 s -
Maturities of Long-Term Debt are as follows:
For the Years Ending December 31, Anmount
2024 $ 11,143
2025 11,255
2020 11,368
2027 1.930
Toul S 3500
1 | DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The following table disaggregates the Organizalion’s revenuc based on service line and timing of

satisfaction of performancc obligations for the years ended June 30:

2022 2021
Services Transferred at a point in tinie
High Schoot Equivalent Test (FISET) - Fees $ 18.360 S 9,549
Service transferved over tine
Childcare/Daycaré services 799,227 695,050
Student Assistance Program (SAD) 216,000 256,368
Alterative Lhigh Schoot (AFIS) 199,501 254,799
Transittonal Employment & Training (1.E.T.) 275,174 219,653
High School Equivalent Test (HISET) 241,211 139,820
Welcoming Concord 3,441 12,540
Total Revenue from Contracts with Customers ) 1 ,;r'%'f',‘) 14 s 1,587,779

{Continued on next page)

- Paye 1Y.-




b i

-

L.

SECOND START
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Various cconomic [actors affect revenues and cash flows. There is no third-party financing and revenue
and ‘cash flows arc generally concureent. Services occur and transfer to the customer over various
periods of time, depending on the program. Revenucs and cash flows occur upon completion of the
SCTVICES.

J| CORPORATE ORGANIZATION

The Organization is a voluntary organization under Chapter 292 of the New Hampshire Revised
Starutes Annotated and therefore has no capital stock.

K| NET ASSETS

There wis $5,000 of net assets with donor restrictions for the year ended June 30, 2022, These funds
are resiricted for use in the Alternative High School program and were not expended by June 30, 2022,
In addition, $10,000 of net asscts with donor resirictions was received for driving education purposes
under the Welcoming Concord program, The full amount was expended and released from resirictions
as of June 30. 2022, There was_no net asscts with donor restrictions for the year ended June 30, 2021,
Additionally, there were $100,067 and $100,017 of Board Dusignated Funds set aside for capital and
other repairs and maintehance projects al June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

L] LEASE AGREEMENTS

The Organization has entercd 1t a long-term lease agreement for property located at 450 North State
Street whereby the Organization has use of the building in retumn for its upkeep and mainmenance. The
Organization operates the AEL and TET programs cut of this location. ‘The tmprovements were
capitalized with a five to thirty-year depreciable lilc. Depreciation expense was $12,747 and $7,796 for
the ycars ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

M | CONTRIBUTED NONFINANCIAL ASSETS

For the year ended June 30, 2022, contributed nonfinancial assets recognized within the statements of
activities included the following:

June 30, I 2022 021
Rem $ 15,900 $ 18900
Total S ...15,900 S 18900

The Organtzation recognized contnbuted nontinancial assets within revenue, wmcluding contributed
rent. Unless otherwise noted, contribuled nonlinancial assets did not have donor-imposed restrictions,

{Comtinued on next page)
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Contributed rent consists of the FMV leased spacc from the City of Concord based on a quoted triple
net price per syuare foot basis, excluding real estate taxes, that was used tor its Adult Education and
Literacy program. The Organization has an agreement with the City of Concord to use this building
space uaiil 2028,

N | INCOME TAXES

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under Section 50 a) of the Internal Revenue Cade
as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3). The Organization has alse been classitied as an entity
thai is not a privae foundation within the meaning of Section 309(a) and qualifies for deductible

contributions.

I'or the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, management has cvaluated its tax position in accordance
with FASB ASC 740-10 and does not believe they have taken uncertain tax positions, therclore, a
liability for income taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not been recognized. Additionally,
the Organization did not recogmize interest or penaltics resulting from tax labilitics associated with
recognizing uncertain tax positions for the vears ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.

The Organization is a non-profit organization; as a resuly, it files a federal Form 990, Rewrn of
Organization Exempt from Income Tax, and a New Hampshire Annual Report. In the normal course of
business, the Organization is subject to examination by taxing authorities, With limited exceptions, the
Organization is no longer subject to federal or State of New Hampshire examinations for their federal
Form 990 or New Hampshire Annual Repont for the years belore 2019.

O | RETIREMENT PLAN

‘The Organization maintains a retirement plan undcr the Iniecmal Revenue Code Scetion 403(b) for its
employees through a third party. Eligible panticipants over twenty-one years of age and working morc
than 1,000 hours per year may clect to makce a voluntary pre-tax salary deferral each year. not lo cxceed
the maximum altowed by law. The Organization may coniribute to the employee’s retirement fund at
the Board’s discretion. There were no contributions paid by the Organization [or the vears ended-June
30,2022 and 2021.

AContinved on next page)
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SECOND START
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Organization's lnancial assets available within onc year from the statements ol inancial position
date for general operating expenscs are as follows: j

2022 2021
Cash and Cash Fquivalents S OL33093 S LS4
Accounts Receivable 216323 42,351
Grants Receivable 279983 225,180
Prepaid Expenses 10031 50,013
¥inancial assets, at ycar end .81 1434 1,307,605
Less those unavailable lor general expendiiures within
ane year duc to:
Danor-imposed restrictions (3,000) -
Board designated funds (100,067) (100,017}
Financial assets available to mect cash needs for
general expendilures within onc year S L700,367 S lAureds

The Organization has financial assets on hand equal to approximately 6 months of opcrating expenses,
which totaled $3.659.163 for the year ending Junc 30, 2022. The Organization has {inancial asscts on
hand cqual 1o approximately 5 months of operating expenses, which totaled $3.514.436 for the year
ending June 30, 2021, At times. the Board of Directors may designate a portion of any operating surplus
to its liquidity rescrve for (uture expenditures. At June 30, 2022, there were $100,067 of Board
Nesignated Funds set aside for capiial and other repairs and maintenance projects. At June 30, 2021,
there was $100.017 of Board Desitmated Funds set aside for capital and other repairs and maintenance
projects. A signiticant portion of the Organization’s funding is derived from cost reimbursement grants
from federnl and state agencies; therefore, the Organization believes its liquid financial asscts are
sutficient to fund unanticipated liquidity needs that may anse. Additionally, the Organization has a line
of credit which allows for borrowings up o $600.000.

Q l COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Energy Efficiency Initiative

In fiscal year 2010, the Organization began an initiative to improve the encrgy clticiency of both 450
Narth State Street and the 17 Knight Strect building in Concord, New Hampshire. The initiative
includes encrgy improvements, including insulation, new windows, new daycare ceilings, ventilation
and lighiing, boiler replacement, conversion to electronic thermostats, and appliance replacement at an
estimated total cost of $681,263.

{Continued on next piage)
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Financial support for the encrgy cfficiency initiative included a Community Development Finance
Authority (CDFA) grant of $343,000. Additional funding was obtained from a Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) in the amount of $313,265 through the City of Concord, New
Hampshirc and $15,000 in cash donations. Thesc grants were completed in 2011. Both grants are
restricted (o the Organization’s energy cfficiency initiative. Additionally, in the event the Organization
ceases 10 use the buiidings in providing scrvices 1o low to moderate income populations, both grants
will require repayment of a portion of the proceeds. This contingency continuces through 2020 and 2030
for the CDTA and CDBG grants, respectively.

Grant Compliance

The Organization received funds under various grants. Undcr the terms of the grants, the Organization
is required 10 usc the funds within a certain period and for purposes specified by governing laws and
regulations. If expenditures were found not to have been made in compliance with laws and regulations,
the Qrganization might be required to repay the funds.

Comingencies

In fiscal year 2016, the County of Mermimack awarded ithe Organization a CBDG grant in the amount
of $300.000 16 be used for building improvemenis at the Garrison facility. The improvements include
roof replacement, exterior fagade mortar repairs, exterior painting, solar pancls, and additional
insulation at its 17 Knight Sireet, Concord, New Hampshire facility. The grant requires that at least
77% of the persons served by the project be low and moderate income. In the event of default, the gram
may require repayment of the funds already distributed. This contingency continues through the year
2036.

R| CONCENTRATIONS

Cush
The Organization maintains cash balances at a local financial institution that, al times, may cxcced the

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) sccured limit of $250,000. At Junc 30, 2022 and 2021,
the Qrganization had umnsured balances of $1,084,105 and $989,501, respectively.

Accounts Receivable

I“inancial instruments that potentially subject the Organization (o concentrations of credit risk consist
primarily of accounts receivable. The Organization performs ongoing credit evaluvations of its
customers, and penerally docs not require collateral. Historically, credit losses have not been
significant. Approximately 69% and 88% of the accounts reccivabies were granis receivable from the
State of New Hampsture for the vears ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

{Continned on nex: page)
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Major Source of Funding

The major source of funds for the Organization’s opcrations is made available by federal and stalc
government grants. The State of New Hampshire Depariment of Education (DOEL) provides 25% and
22% ol the wial support and revenue received for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
The State of New Hampshire Depariment of Health and Human Services (DHHES) provides 14% and
15% of the total support in revenue received for the years ended June 20, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
The Small Business Administralion (SBA) Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) provides 16% of the
total support and revenue received for the year ending June 30, 2021. The availability of funding is
contingent upon federal or state authorization for program activity and appropriation of funds.

Major Customers
Tuition and fee revenue from Concord School District, one of Second Stant’s major customcrs.

represented 20% and 19% of the Organization’s total suppon and revenue for the years ended June 30,
2022 and 2021, respectively.

5 | COVID-19 CONSIDERATIONS

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outhreak of the novel coronavirus
(COVID- 19) as a pandemic which continues to spread throughout the world. While the spread of the
virus has causcd business disruptions across the United Siates, the Organization has not experienced
any significant interruptions to their activitics as of the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. Whilc
there remains considerable uncertainty around the duration of this pandemic, there are ne ongoing
concerns wilh the Qrganizations ability to continue operations for a period of one year from the date of
these financial statcmenis: Sce govermuent grants and relicl (Note D) for details on the funding the
Organization applicd for and received in response to COVID-19.

T |  RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain amounts in the 2021 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2022
presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on the reponted results of previously repored net
asscts.

9] SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 31, 2022, the date which the linancial
statements were available to be issued. and has not evaluated subsequent events afier that date. The
Organization did not identity any subsequent events thai would require disclosure in the financial
statemenis.

- Fuge 24 -
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SECOND START
SCHEDU FOPSUPTORT AND RUVIRVES, EXPLESIS AHIYCIANGEN IN NE ] ASSIIA
FOR THE YEAR EXNDED JUNE W0, 022

Adult
General & Special nET Alternative Student Educaron & Welcoming
Building Educerion Program Itixh Nchool Assisiance Literscy Concord Daycare Toeal
SUFPUR I AND REVENUES
Grams (ran Govermenental Agencie, 5 . i . . 3 Y MM It 3 VL 3 . L LA LK PSR
Prvais Feey . . . - - . - Ly P
Fees Sren (averrumental Agencivy . 130,080 278078 199,501 116000 dagady - . [ RLAL R
Gavenmen: Ausittange « COVID-1$ Funding 1264 wge 4,00 43424 §3,43% Y7 MY 450224
hlizceflaneous Incony 450 = . . L 125 144 4,138 12213
Pivier Grants . ! - . - . 6000 . hLHA
Contribatioen of caph 3nd othey firancial dasls 17,642 : - 2029 - . - . "anzt
Comribetions ¢f punfinancial asseu . . - - - 25,5000 - - EEX 2]
£nhited Wiy - . - v 10,150 1,173 . - 287
Inrerem insoine 13 . . T = = : = 753
Tatal Suppert and Revennea 27,400 20,1734 291,948 233,781 hEaXds] 1,39, 18,163 1,263,399 1.%5.985
NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESNTRICTIONS
Satistaction of Progsam Restrictivns - = = = . 10,000 - 10,950
Tarel Net Asavts Reteared from Restrictions - - - . 3 = 1) R - 19,500
TOTAL SUPPORT. REVENUE, AXND OTHER NET
ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 27,408 19,178 29194y 225,753 575480 1,139,394 IR, 168 1,363,599 1,975,985
EXPFNSES
Program Servicen
Inatruction and Studest Activities 7234 230,18 | RRIKAS 110,184 449,505 [T A s ~IAsN LANLEY
St Develepment and Prefetsonal Fees . 4,587 (124 37<) 5371 I AN - ten ey IEwE
rher Program Custs 14,353 10,550 13,550 15,558 4 N2 1088 WH 787 2T
Oreupaney . y548 ERED 4658 L By 3 LU 1Y 445,274
Inzeres Fupense . 250 Rxd <f 3 HE) J - 34
Dot Depreciaon . . 14,97 1321 3331 un MATT _dnay ALV 120y
Twtel Proxram Services 2.7 LN 110,31, 167 4% 441,710 I,ﬂ*‘;_S?S kR LH INA/AL T 3263478
Swppary Serdees ;
General Adminimrative : U 15.530 BANY $x427 132,%5% 1098 132,008 B RAS]
(Gaing Lerss o Dispasal of Prepierty and Equipnnent 12,730 - - - - - - - {2.730}
Tetul Support Services (7730 V§.6i%h 14,540 33,371 14,437 112,952 1493 154 40x, 190,11
Timal Expensey 19 067 213,350 11590 190,362 1,137 1.32.33) MEYE 1,143,491 1,446.314
CIANGE [N NET ASSETS WITH DONOHR RESTRICTIONS
Bonu Resuited Suppor and Revenee ] . : o] . - 10,000 &} 15,000
Net Asaety Holeawd fiom Restiiclions . - - : : [0 ) L _E10.£00}
Increase (Extecast) in Net Asscts with Dunor Rericrians ; : - 3 400 : . . . T T st
Ewweans (Delicieney) &f Suppont and '
Roveners Over Dapesses A0, N 166022 800 33,543 Ry 2014 A 10K IR
Nt Avaets, Aeginning of Year )20 02 (LRI LR R 419807 L0222y AL L 12412 PAR LY (AR Y Ad 21077
Nes Anery, End of Yrar 344013 3 glgnn 3 Syiean S ioohltt ) WL 3 17 3 Myl 3 w7480 3 a4
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SECOND START

SCHEDULE OF SUPPORT ANL REVERUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSEYS

FORCTHE YEAR ENDED 1UNE 30, 200

SUPPORT AND HEVENUES
Ciram from Goverreeoas! Agescies
Privine ees
Feas lrom Govcrnmentl Apmcies
Government Asapianc: - 1'PI1*
Miscellanecus fngune
(irontsPriva::
Comributions of Zith and other Fnarcial asgets
Contribiiions of axnfirancal axscts
United Way
Interest Incone

Tetel Support and Reveaues

EXPENSES
Program Servicer
Instruction and Swaom Activitics
Suft Dev cloprnent ad Professionsl Fees
Criher Peogram Cosi
Ocupanss
Dnrect Depresidiiog
Taread Prugram Servicea

Suppors Servicr
Generzl Admin:irative
. Tutai Suppart Strvices

Tulal Expenses

Excets {Delizenzy) of Soroon 3nd
Reveney (ver Eypenses

Net Anen, Beiinniag af Veer

Net Assens. End of Year

Adult
General & Special ner Alternative Sttedernt Education & Welcoming
Ruilding Educarian Program High Schoot Atcittance Literacy Concord Daycare Tutal
$ -8 - 8 E 1125 8 27391 § 6L a06 3 L AN SOlMALAL
X . A N 3 B B AR L L
. 147,275 219,683 254 709 256368 143,369 - - B ER L
3.620 128077 peRAY] 45,377 71,134 dunil 4.7 27042 Tat 42l
aam - ¥ . £ 940 12,4y 3200, 0,55
S - = : . . 4,000 H U
20,349 - . 2818 : 9,000 2,50 2 3Im
15,900 11601
- - . 1005 - 1350k - . 23t
bl S - - . - & * £
046 275352 247,384 M teb 607,293 1,072,912 isx0) IREXNITIN 1920117
15,770 250417 80.745 112,807 HIals ST1.395 14764 LR T 2ANITI4
. 2.0 1249 3093 4513 KA . A (s 1",
.50 PAKT R 1342 1584 5,782 113451 L2 RSOIS 64 050
- Q00 s 45 9000 - 31,357 . RET 1IN 372
= 1450 2.685 hatl 170 37.083 1,040 ] 34,023
18,231 202,817 10],482 16,095 437,079 951.5%90 22,517 141,006 » AN17.577
. 43,181 15,921 PAR LY 01,0584 115423 A.9%0 113,678 406,15)
- 41,783 15,921 21,482 63,64 115428 Loto 113,618 400,133
18,281 336,600 117,401 184,577 310,78 1,067,018 16,497 1,246,690 A.31%,230
th, oy [T ] 129.95] [ Wit $o.340 15.4% 2116 FORES ] 410547
1,254,187 {175.15Q) 259,988 396,236 (34.787) {13,482 19041 32.152 2,008,523
§ 124922 3 (18] 3 419969 1622 3 51,74% H 12413 3 18,357 3 622,572 § 2a9.m
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Joseph Shoemaker

Matt Nadeau

Ashley Aniskovich

Frank Lemay
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Tom Painchaud
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Second Start Board of Directors

Director of Operations

Principal

Manager

President

Senior VP-of Distribuiion Services

Senior Teller

President

Member since 2019

Vice President

Member since 2012

Treasurer

Member since 2020

tember since 2005

Member since 2012

Member since 2012




Dodd Griffith

Caroline Brown

Clement Senga Kigugu
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Tammy Wells

Attornev

Attorney

Executive Director

Quidanc_e_

Loan Servicing Coordinator

Member since 2014

Member since 2017

Member since 2019

Member since 2020

fember since 2023




Mission Statement

Our misston is to help people become more productive workers, family members and community
citizens. We provide supportive, affordable and effective educational programs, tncluding: adult
basic education, job training and career counseling, education and training for at-risk youth and
child care services.



Laura Scarcello

Professional Experience:

2016 —present

2013 - 2016

2000-2013

Education:

2016

2016

1995

References:

Administrative Assistant
Second Start, Concord, NH

Customer Service Specialist !l/Customer Seérvice Supervisor
First Colebrook Bank/Granite Bank, Concord, NH

Owner/Manager
Annie’s Book Stop, Concord, NH

National Career Readiness Certificate — GOLD LEVEL
Concord, NH

WorkReadyNH Soft Skills Course
Concord,-NH

University of Southern California
Bachelor of Science - Biology, Minor ~German
Los Angeles, CA

Concord High School
Concord, NH

Available upon Request




Title: Business Qltice Administrative Assislant

Reports to: Office Manager

Responsibilities:

Open office each moming ensuring officc is neat, and inviting and ready to
welcome clients and co-workers
Greet walk-in clients and direct them 10 the most appropriate staff member 1o
help them
Provide day to day administrative support including correspondence for
FExecutive Director and other program directors as needed.
Be responsible for the management and inventory of all office supplies.
Answer and correctly direct all incoming phone calls.
Sort and distnbute agency mail.
Receive and record in logs all checks or cash received by mail or in person.
Maintain various cash bags for admimistration, ic. Petty cash, vending, change
bag
Coordinate Board of Director’'s mectings
Troubleshoat routine network and common software probiems
Provide routine website maintenance
Answer all calls regarding HISET testing and scheduling of ABE, ESL
testing.
HiSET data base entry
Coordination of Board of Directors meetings, mailings and files.
Filing of documents in agency master files
Maintain various spreadsheets for management analysis
Back up DC administrative staff by occasionally calling parents to report
sickness, injury or incident.
Processing of weekly DC ACH.
Entering all DC Scholarship billing and rcccipts.
Vendor management, including statement research and 1099's
Weekly coding, entry, and payment for all Accounts Payable invoices and filing
agency hills.
Assistin the preparation of umeeards tor processing and distribution,
Complete bi-weekly timecard entry and assist Coniroller with payroll check
and paystub creation.
Cellating paychecks and eaming statements for mailing or distribution.
Pertorm other duties in the best interest of the agency that are from time (o
time assigned by the Executive Director.

Updated 8/2019




Frank Edeiblut

Christine Brennan
Coenmissioner

Daputy Commissioner

STATE DF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
101 Pleasand Street
Concord, N.H. 03301
TEL. {603) 271-3495
FAX {803) 271-1983

Janvary 21, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununy
State House
Concord, New Hompshire 03301

REQUESYED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Education, Bureau of Adull Education to enter into a contract with
Second Siart, Concord, NH (Vendor Code #177224), in the amount of $203,716.38 to provide high
school equivalency test center coordination services, effective upon Gavernor approval through
June 30, 2023. 100% State Funds.

Funds to support this request ore available in the account filled Adult Education for FY21 and
anlicipated to be ovailable in FY22, and FY23 and upon the availabilty and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the ability to adjust encumbrances

between Fiscal Years through the Budget Office without further Governor approval, if needed and
justified.

FY21 06-56-56-403%000-602-500932 State Funds Non-Match  $ 54,048.25
FY22 06-56-56-403%000-602-500932 Staie Funds Non-Match  $70,537.50
FY23 06-56-56-4039000-602-500932 State Funds Non-Maich  $77,130.43

TOTAL $203.716.38

PLANATE

A request for high school equivalency test center coordination services was issued on December
14, 2020. The notice was published in the Union Leader on December 14, 2020 for one day and
posted on the NH Department of Education's wetxsite and a notice was sent electronically to ail
NH aduit education centers, Only one proposal was received. See attachment A.

Approval of this request wik ollow the confracter to provide test center adminisirative support
services, provide for the recruitment and fraining of new examiners and faciltate special
payments for incarceraled individuals of the NH State Prison. Both the pandemic and changes to
the payment process for the HISET Exam effective on January 11, 2021 have created on issue with
the financial viability of NH's high schoo! equivalency tesfing centers. In the past, test centers have
collected and retained a portion of the testing fees at the local level to cover operational costs.
Due to the pandemic. test center capacities have been draslically reduced thus causing o
financial hardship 1o the fest centers. On January 11, 2021, the payment system for the high school

TOD Access: Rolay NH 711
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPFPORTUNITIES



His Excelency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
Stale House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

Poge 2

equivalency exam wili be changed to allow test takers to pay for the exam online and thereby
entirely eiminafing the collection of fees at the local level. This contract wil allow the contractor
to track, verify and reimburse testing centers for administrative costs.

The contractor will also address the curent lock of trained examiners across the state by providing
recruitment and training services to increase capaciy for testing. Cumrently some testing centers
only have one test administrator which has resulted in multiple cancelled testing sessions due to
COVID-1% exposure. Additionally, many of the curent examiners are older, retired individuals.
Tralning new examiners will ensure that New Hompshire is able o continuously provide high school
equivalency testing services across the state.

Additionally, the contractor will focilitate the test fee poyments for certain populations such as
incarcerated individval do not have the opfion for online payments.

The Bureau of Adult EQucalion provides high school equivaiency testing services for more than
1,200 individuals each year. The HISET test inchudes five sublests in the content areas of Science.
Social Studies, Language Arts — Reading, Language Aris - Writing and Mathematics,

Respectiully submitted,

frank Edelblut
Commibssioner of Education

I hereby approve this request pursuant o RSA 4:45, RSA 21-P:43, and Section 4 of Executive Order
2020-04 as extended by Executive Orders 2020-05 and 2020-08, 2020-09. 2020-10. 2020-14, 2020-15,
2020-16. 2020-17 and 2020-18, 2020-20, 2020-21, 2020-23, 2020-24, and 2020-25, 202101 and
suspend the Manual of Procedures 150, V., B., 1., requirement,

2-37-2) _@:-_#AQ

Date Govemor Christopher T. Sunun

TOD Accoss: Relay NH 711
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ATTACHMENT A

A request for high school equivalency test center coordination services was issued on December
14, 2020. The nolice was published in the Union Leader on December 14, 2020 for one day and
posted on the NH Department of Education’s website ond o notice was sent etectronically to ail
NH adult education centers, Only one proposal was received.

CCATEGORIES % vy ¥l i ™o’ ¢ oor o’ e 0% o g et A < 5| POINTS
Company Background, Profile and Experience including audited financiol records 20
Key Personnel including job descriptions and resumes 5
Two Reference letters : : 5
Project Plan " 50
Cost Proposal 20
W ',;:':1.' SR o ST, | pem Ho R e ™ E 5 oRe il e

TOTAL POTENTIAL MAXIMUM POINTS AWARDED 100

n Scoring. ding R men

The proposal was evoluoled as folows:
i o

R L P T P T B, P Loy AL [ | e S B g | e [y o e
e e e S
.Organizolion Profie, Backaround & Expetience 20 19 20 | 20 20
Koy Personnel 5 4 5 5 5

Relerences 5 ' 4 5 5

Projeci Plan S0 45 | 50 40 45

Cost Proposal 20 T 10 15 12

Totad 100, 83 | 8y 85 86
Reviewers

Sarah Monrissey is The Assistant Director of the Employment Services Bureau and Operations of
New Hompshire Employment Security with eleven [11) years of service to Ihal departmenit. Prior
to thai role. she served as the Manager of the Somersworth and Partsmouth NH Works offices. As
a core partner in the NH workiorce system, Sarah has requent inferaction with the adult
educotion field including parlicipation in local partner meefings, fociitation of interagency
referrals and coordination in the administration of the NH State Workforce Plan.

Dina DIGregorio Karlon is the Education and Credential Specialist for the NH Employment Program
and works as an affliate io the NH Department of Health & Human Services. She is employed by
Southern NH Services and spent the previous filteen years working os a schoadl counselor. She has
more than twenily-live years of experience in educalion. especially in the areas of altemative
opfions lor gradualion,

Jefiry Beard is an Education Consultant with the Depariment of Educotion. Bureou of Career
Development. He oversees the Drop Oul Prevention Grani which historically has provided the high
school equivalency exam as a required program component.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/} 172019)

" Noljce: This agrEemmr and ail of its stachments shall become public upan submission to Governor and
Executive Council for epproval. Any information that is private, confidential o proprietary must
be cleasly identified 10 the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire end the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1= IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 Siate Agency Name 1.2 -Stale Agency Addreis.
Depariment of Education, Burean of Adult Education 21 South Frult Street, Suite 20
Concord, NH 03301
1.3 Contracior Name 1.4 Contraclor Address:
Second Stan 17 Knight Street
Concord, NH 03301
15 Contractor Phonc T1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date ~ | 1.8 Frice Limniafian
Number See Exhibit C June 30, 2023 '] $203,716.38
(603) 228-1341 :
1.9 Contracting Officer for Stats Agency "1.10 State Agency Telephone Nimber
. Sargh Ladd Wheeler (603)271-670%
1.11 Contrector Signature 1.i2 Neme and Title of Contractor Signatory
e ] A Erie ; James B. Snodgrass, Exceutive Director
g o ity
LT3 Statc Agency Signature |/ 1-14 Name and Title of State Agency Signalory
; Frank Edelblut, Commissioner ;
b I eaer |

1.15 _Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division.of Persennel (i applicable)

By: Director, On:

1:16 Approval by the Attorpoy-Giencral (Form, Substance and Exccution) (i, applicuble)

[ e ... 0n318[2‘

Qﬂ-ﬂ,\‘ .JMS,\ | Ouip

L7 by the Govenor ond Executive Council (if applicable)
:C. ltem number. G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4 :
Contractor Initials {'
Date ¥




1. SERVICES TQ BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshise, acting: through the.agency ideotified. in block 1.1
("Smee”), engages contractor identified in block 1.}
(“Contractor™) to perform, and the Contractor shaf I.perform, the
work or salo.of goods, or both, identificd’znd mare particularly
described in the anached EXHIBIT B which is incorporatcd
herein by reference (“Serviees™).

3. EFFECTIVEDATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding #ny: provision of this Agreement to the
contrary; and subject to. the approval of the .Governor and
Executive Courrcil of the Stte of New Hampshire, if ipplicable,
this Agreement, and all obilgations of this partics hereunder, shail
become. effective on. ihe ‘dite the Govemor end Exccutive
Council approve this Agreement:'ss. indlcated .in block 117,
onless 00 such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall beconic effective on the date the-Agreement is signed by
the Stalo Agency as shown in block'1.13 ("Effective Date™).

32 If the Contractor’ commences 'thé Seivices prior to the
Effective Date, all- Services performed by the Contractor prier to
the Effectivo Diitt shall bo: performed ai the soke risk of the
Contrector, and in the event that this Agreémént does not become
effective, the- State shall have no liabfity to thé Contrsctor,
including without: limitation,. eny- obligation to pay the.
Coniractor for 6ily -costs ‘incurred or Sérvices performed.
Contractor must complete &l Services by the Completion Date.

specified in block 1.7,

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF ACREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any ;provision of this Agrcement: to the
contrary, all .obligations of, the State “hereunder, inclixding,
without limitétion, the coitiniance of. ‘payments hereunder, are:

contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of

funds aflected by any ‘siate ‘or federal tegistative or executive.

action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifics, the
appropriation. or‘ovailibility of funding for. this Agreement end
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole orin
part. In no event shall the State be.liable for &y payments
hereunier in excess of such availabie appropriated funds, n-the
event of 2 reduction- or termination .of. approprisied fands; the
State shall have'the right 1o withhold paymerit until such funds
become svailable, if eves, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services.under this-Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such refuciion or termination.
The State. shail not be requircd to-transfer funds from any other

‘accourit or sourte to the Account identified in'block: 1.6 i the.

event furds in that Accoiit re fedced or anavaiiable,

5, CONTRACT FPRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT. N

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and tenms 6f payment
ore identified and moré particularly - described: in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by.referénce.

5.2 The payment by the.State of the contract price. thall be.ihe
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for: all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performiance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
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compensation to the Contractor for the Services, Thie State shall
hiave no. liability to the Contractor other than the contrast price.
5.3 The Stte réséives the right. to. offiet from any“armoints,
otherwise paynble:to e Contracior undér this ‘Agece ment those
liquidated :amounts -required or perminéd by N:H. RSA 80
through RSA 80:7-¢ or any. other provision of law..

5:4 Notwittistanding:any provision in this “Agreement. to_the
contrary, and notwithsianding uncxpected circumstances; in no
event shall the total off all payments suthorized, of actiiofiy. nade
hereunder, excéed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.3,

6. COMPLIANCE BY. CONTRACTOR WITH LA WS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In conncction with the: performance of the Services, the:

Controctor- shall .comply with: all ‘applicable statutes, Fws,
regulations, - and. ordérs. of Federnl, statc, county ‘or fwiicipal
authoritles . which-impdsé’ any obligation ‘or duty :upon ‘the-
Contractor, including, but Aot liriited 10, eivil rights and equal,
employmerit opportuni ty'laws. In addition if; ‘this Apreeent it
funded inany pant by manies of 1he Uniled States, the Contractor

shall comply with all federal exccutive orders, rules, regi lntions

-andstatutes, and wiihany. riles, regulations and guidelines as the

Stato.or the Uhited States.issucto.implement these regulations.

The Contractor shall also comply withall,applicable ¥itcliccual

propenty laws: )

6.2 During the term-of this"Apreement. thé Contractor shall'not

discriminote againsi employees or applicants .for employiném

‘because of race, color, religion, ereed, age, sex, handicap, sexudl

orientation, or natianal origin and will take affirniative action 10
‘prevent such discrimination, ' '

6.3. The Contractor agrecs to permit the State or United Srates
:access to any of the Contrictor's books. - records and accounts for
[he purpose of ascermaining complionce with all rales, r_egulnti'om;;
and orders, -and the covenanis, terms ‘and coriditions 6f this
Agreement,

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractar shzill'at.its,own_expcqse provide all persdnne}
necessary lo perform the Services. The Contractor wamants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be. qunli_ﬁcﬁ ‘o
perform the Services; ‘and :shall be' properly licensed and
otherwise zuthorized o do 5o under ali 2pplicable laws:

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized, in writing, during: the. ferm of
thizs Agreement, and for operiod. of six (6) moriths after the
‘Coinpletion Date In block 1:7, the Coniractor shall nét hire, and:
shall not- permit any' subcontractor ior other person, firmior
corporationwith whom! it is‘engegcd in-a‘combincd-cfTon to
perform the Services 1o hire, any person'who'is o Staté émployee:
‘or offlcial, who. is.malerisily: involved in the procurement,
‘administration or .performance: of this Agreement.  This
provision shall suryive termination of this Agresiiior. ‘
7.3 The Contracting. Officer. specified in block 1.9, o his or:her
successor, shall be the State's represéniaiive: in the cvent of i
dispute concerning: the: interpréttion of thiy Aireciien:. Wiy
Contracting Officei*s decision. shall be final torghe Suag,

i)
Contractor Initinis':@o’{__,___
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES,

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Coatractor shall constitute an event of defaul hereunder (“Event
of Default"):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfoctority or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; snd/or
8.1.3 failure 10 perform any other coveaant, tenm or condition of
this Agreesnent.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of! ‘Default, the Suate may
ke nny ‘one, or more, or all, of the followmg actions:

8.2.1 give the Contracior a writien notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied wihhin, in'the shsence of
a greatcror lasser specification ofuma, tlurty (30) days frorn the
date'of the notice; end if thé Event of Defailt is not umcly cured,
termingte this Agreement, effective two (2) days afer giving the
*Conwactor notice of termimtion;

:8.2.2 give the Contrattoi o writien notica specifying the Event of
Default. end suspénding all payitients o be: made under this
Agreement and. ordering that the portion- of the. contraét price
which ‘would otherwise accnue 0 the Contractor during -the

period frum the date of such: notice until- such time a3 the State.

determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Defsult
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

'8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Defailt and set 6fF against any other obligations the State'may
owe to the Contractor mny damages the State suflérs by reason of
any Event-of Derault and/or

824 givethe Contractorn wrmcn notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the. Agrmnem as breached, terminate. the
Agrecment and pursue eay of its remedies at taw or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provissons heroof after
dny Eveiit of Defaulr shall be deemed s waiver of its rights with
regard to. that Event of -Default, -or%any subsequent Event of
Defautt, No exprcss fathre 10 enforce any Event of Default shall
be decined a-waiver of the nght ofthe Sune 10 enforce cach-and
alt of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the pan of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragreph 8, the Stste may; ot its sols
discretion, terminate the Agmmem for any reason, in whole or
in pan, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option lo tarminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the cvent of an carly' termination of this Agreament for
any reeson other than the eompietlon of the Services, the
Contractor shall, st the Siale's dmreuon, deliver to the
‘Contracting Officer, not lator then fiftcen (15) days after the dnte
of tenmination, a report (“Termination: Report”) describing: in-

daeil sl Services performed, and the contract; pricc eamed, to.

and mcludmg the date of termination. The form, subject matter,

content, 33d numbes of copies of the Terminatlon Report sholl’

be identical to thase'of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In additicn, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shzll, within 13 days of notice of early termination, develop and
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submil to the State & Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement,

10. DATAJACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
Information ead things devéloped or obitained during t the
performance of; oracquired or-devcloped by renso- of lhu
Agreement;’ mcludmg, but not limited to, sll studies; reports;
files; formulae, mrveys, maps, charts, 'sound recordings, vided
rccordmgs plcmmi rcpfoducuons dravnngs, Analyses, graphiic
representations, compuler programs; computer. prmtouts noles,
letters, memoranda, papers; tnd docuimients; all whéther
finished or unfinished,

10.2 All data and any property which has been reccived from

“the State/or puirchased with.funds provided for thigt purpose.
-under thls Agr:emcnl shall be the'property 1 ofthe Staie, #nd

shall:be rérurmed to'the! 'State: upon demaond.or tpon-teriingtion

-of tiis;Agrecmeént for a any reason.

103 Conﬁdcntmlny of data shall be governed by N H. RSA

echnptcr 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure’of data requires

prior written-épproval of the State.

1. CONTRAC'I‘OR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. Inihe
performance-of. this Agreement the Contractoris in al} respecis’

‘i independent. contracior, and is neither an agent: nor ‘an

employes:of the State. Ncnbcr the Conlrac:or nér any of its.

-ofTicers,, cmployccs Apentsior memibers: shall. Kave guthority to

bind'the State or. receive any benefits, workers’ compensition’oF
other emoluriients provided by the State: 1015 employees

12 ASS!GNMENTIDELECATION!SUBCONTRACTS
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign,-or otherwise transfer’ my

interest in this Agreément without the prior writien rotice, which:

shall bc _provided.to the Staté at least fifteen (15).days! prior to:
the assignment; -and-a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this pmgraph 'a Change of Control “shall constitite
assigninent. “Change of Control” means . (a) merger,

consolidation, or a trinsaction or scries of related transactions in
which ‘a third’ percy; together, with s lmllalcs becomes the
diréct-G¢ indireét jowner of fifty pereent (50%) or more of the
voting shares:or similar’ equity interests, or. combined voting
power of the Coritractor, or (b) the sale’ of all ior substantiatly all
of the assets of the Contractor.

122 None: of the Services shall be subcontracted: by the

Contractor without prior wrilten notice and conséntof the State.

“The State'is entitled to.copics of all subconirzcts and assighment

agrecments and shatl not.be bound by any’ pwwsnons contained
ina; subconlracl or an assignment agreement (6 which it is not p

party.

13 INDEMN!FICATION Unless othenvise.exemptid by-taw,

the Coniractor shail. indemify and hold hammless the St its:

.officers and ‘employies, from, and. against itny and all chiims.

Iub:htles snd costs for any peraonnl injury or properly dam.:u:-.
palent o7 copyr:gh! infrmgcmcnl or other claims: asserted ngaing
the State, its officers or einployees, which erise out of (or whici,
may be claimed (o arise out of) the acts or omission of the

Contractor Initials igg i
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Contractor, - of Subcontraciors, including but not limited to the
ncgligence; reckless oriréntidnal conduct, ‘The State-shall not
be {iablesfor any.costs tncurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph.] 3. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
comatncd shall be deeroed 1o constituto o waiver of the sovereign

immunity of the:State, which-immunity is hereby reserved to the -

Stale.  Thisi covenant ‘in paragraph 13 shall survive: the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.
14.} The :Contracior._shall, a1 its sole expense, obtiln: and
continupusly maintain ‘in force; and shall requir any
subconmactor or assignee to obtain- thd maintin in, force; the
foltowing insurance: ) i

14.1:1 commireial goivernl linbility Insurance agalnst all ciaims
of bodity injury, deiith 6¢ property.damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000°per octumence dnd $2,000,000 aggrogate
orexcessyand '

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparigraph 10.2 héréin, in an amount not less than
‘80% of the whole replacemient value of the property.

14.2 The policics described in subparagraph 14.1 hercin shall be.

on policy forms and endorséments approved for use In'the State.

of New Harijishire: by, the.N.H. Department of Insurance, end

* issued by fusurers licensed in the-State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall fumish to the Contractitip. Officer
identified in block 1:9, or his orhier successor, a centificate(s) of
insurance ‘for -all ‘insurance. required under this Agreement:
Contractor shall'also furmish to the Cortracting Officer identified
ity block 1.9, .or his o her successor, certificate(s).of insursnce
for all renewal(s) of insirince required under this Agrecment no
fater than ten (10) days. prior-to the oapiration date of cach
insurance policy. The cartificate(s) of -ifsurance and eny
rencwals thereof shall be dttached and are incorporated heréin by
reference. '

18. WORKERS' COMPENSATION,

15.1:By.signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, éeifies
-and warrnrits that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the.requirements of N.H. RSA chiptir 281-A (“Workers®
Compensation”). !

15.2. To the exient the Contmctor is subject to'the requirements

of N.H. RSA chapter- 28)-A, ‘Contractor ‘shall maintzin, and

require any subcontractor or. nmignee to secure and maintain, .

paymént' of Workers' Compensation In connection with
activitics which tho person propases 1 undertake puzsuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall fumish the Contraciing Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Werkers'
‘Compensation in the mannei described @ NJH. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thercof, which. shall be
attached.and are. incorporsted. hercin by ‘reférence. The State
shall nat be responsible for payment of any Workers'
.Compensation premiums.or for any other claim or benefl: for
{Coritractor, or -any, subcontractor -or employee of Contractor,
which might ‘prisc under. applicable Siate of New Hampshire,
Waorkers* Compensotion faws in councction with the
petformance of the Services under this Agreement.
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16. NOTICE. Any. noti¢e by a party.hertto to the;other party

shall be deemedito have been dusly'delivered or given ot the time;

©ofmailing by certifiéd mail, postage prepaid, in 5 Uhited Siates:

Post! Office addressed-to: the partiés af the addresses given in.

blocks.1.2.and 14, hercin:

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended; wiived'

or discharged onty by an insirument.in-writing:signed by:the
parties. hercto. and only. sfiev”.dpproval. of such. amendment.
waiver'or discharge by the Govemor sind Executive Coungil‘of’
thé State'of New Hampskhiire unless-no, such approval is requircd
under.ihe circurnstances puruant to State law, nle or policy. .

18: CHOICE OF LAW, AND FORUM. Tiis Agréement.shall
be govemed, interpreted and;construed in-accordanice wwith e
laws of the State of New Hampshire,:and is. binding: upoi ahd
inures fothe benefit of the paities'snd thcir respective successors
+indassigns. The wording used;in this Agrcément is the wording
chosen By th parties'to express their mutuat intent, ind fo-rule.
-of construction:shall be applied: against or in-favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agrecmentshall:be brought and
mizintained in New; Hampshire Superior Court ‘which-shall havi

-exchuslve jurisdiclion:thereof

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. 'ln' the ¢vent of 2 conflict
‘betieen the terms of this P-37 form (as'modified in EXHIBIT
A)-endlor attathments and amendment thereof, the terms of the

'P-37.(8s modified in EXHIBIT A)shall control.

20.. THIRD PARTIES. The patties herelo do not intend 1o
benefit any. third: parties and this: Agreement shall not be
construed 1o conferany, such benefit

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughoul the Agreément aic
for reference purposss only.’and the. words: contained therei
shall in no'way be held:to explain, modify. amplify oraid in the'
inteipretation, construction or meaning-of the provisions.of this:
Agreement.

21 SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions st forih in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference..

23. SEVERABILITY. Inthe'event any of the provisions of this
Agreemant are:held by a ‘court of competent jurisdiction to be
CoNMTRrY (0 &ny state or fecderal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agrecment will remain. In full-foree end effect.

24. .ENTIRE-AGREEMENT: This Agreement, which maylbe
exccuted in a-number-of counterparts, each af which-shall' be
deemed an original, constituies’ the -entire agréement il
understanding between. the, parties;. and; supersedes all Priu
agreeméals and understandings with respeet to the subject munter
hereof,

Contractor Initials
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EXHIBIT A
Specis) Provisions

The Contractor must comply with the following provisions:

Exhibit D: Contractor Obligations

Exhibit E: Federat Debarment and Suspension

Exhibit F: Anti-Lobbying

Exhibit G: Rights to Inventions Made Under a Cantract, Copy Rights and Confidentiality
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EXHIBITB
Scope of Services

The NH Department of Education, Bureau of Adult Education, administers the high schoo! equi valency
program for tho siats-of New Hampshire including contracting for testing services, approviiig,and
monitoring testing centers, ostablishing policies and-procedures and issuinga high séhbol equivileicy
certificate upon successful completion.of the exam; The current testing used:for higith school:¢quivalency

is the HISET published by Educationa! Testing Service (ETS).

Second Start, Concord, NH will provide the following High School Equivalency Testing Center
Coordination Services in order to provide support and build capacity for HiSET Test Centers:

Subtest Administrative Support

The vendor is responsible for disbursing payments to cover a portion of the cost for test administrution
services at a rate determinad by the Burean of Adult Education,

* A rato shall be established by the Bureau of Adult Education, applicable until such a time as
the COVID-19 restrictions on capacity and additional time required to comply with health
and safety measures including an additional maximum of $50 per month reimbursement for
required personal protective equipment and cleaning supplies.

*  ARer restrictions due to the pandemic expire, the Bureau of Adult Education shall establish a
standard per subtest reimbursement rate. .

*» Thevendor shall use the Test Center Portal provided by ETS in order to verify the number of
subtests administered et ¢ach testing center on.a monthly basis.

» The vendor may require eligible Test Centers to submit a monthly invoice or reimburseinent
request.

s The vendor shall issue payments based on the established rates.

Training Support

The vendor is responsible for the recruitment and training of new test administrators to increase statewide
testing capacity.

¢ The vendor will provide the Testing Center a stipend of $25 per hour for the examiner trainee's
time spent in observation/participation activities, not to exceed a maximum of 12 hours.

Facilitation of Special Payment
The vendor is responsible for facilitating the distribution of vouchers for special circumstances.

‘e The vendor will facilitate the purchase of vouchers for incarcerated individuals at the NH State
Prison in exchange for payments made from their prison accounts. Inmates shall only be required
to pay the ETS foes s published by the Burcan of Adult Education.

¢ The vendor shall receive payments and issue vouchers for ETS fees as published by the Burcau of
Adult Education in the evenl of restricted private contributions for adult education students.

o The vendor may require an application for such services.

Contractor initiols
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Esfiinsted Budget -

EXHIBIT C

Method of Payment

This contract is funded with Adult Education State Non-Match Funds.

The foilowing table includes an estimated budget:

TFya1

Fyiz FY23  Total

Salaries $2,800.00 $6,240.00 - $6,427.20 | ¥ 1546720
Benefits . $653.00 $1.885.00 $1,941.55 | $ 447955
COVID 19 $5,000.00 £ 5,000.00
Reimbursements ; G

Subtest Reimbursement $41,100.00 $52,500.00 $60,000.00 || $153,600.00
"Training Stipends $1,400.00 $3,500.00 .. $1,75000 . § 6,650.00
Indirect Cost $5,095.25 $6,412.50 37011881 ° 518509.63
Total $56,048.25 £70,537.50 577,130.63 {7 $203,716.38

1. Reimbursements disbursed through this contract agreement shall be based on actual subtests administered

and examiners trained.

2. The Department of Education reserves the right to increase and/or decrease contract funds subject to
continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services, and approval by the Governor and

Executive Coungil,

3. Line items in this budget may be adjusted, one to the other, of the indicated amount but in no instance can

the total budget exceed the price limitation. The vendor must receive Department of Education approval
prior to transfesting from one line to another.

Limitation on Price:

This Contract will not exceed $203,716.38 without written modification signed by

the partics of this agreement and approved by the Governor and Council.

Soarce of Funding:

Education Non-Match Funds as follows:

Account Number:

06-56-56-562010-40390000-602

Funding for this contract is 100% State Funds from the account titled 4039 Aduh

Acct | Clqm Name

FY21

FY22

FY23 Total

4039 | 602

Adult Education Stat_e Non Match

$56,048.25

$70,537.50

$77,130.63.] $203.716.38 |

Method of Payment

The vendor shall be paid on a monthly basis through the NH Department of Education’s Grants Management

System,

|. Peyments for services under this contract arc limited to reimbursement for actual expenses incurred in the
fulfiltment of this agreement during the contract period. Reimbursement for expenses after Junc 30, 2023
shall not be accepted for payment.
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2. A final payment request shall be submitted ho Iater than forty-five (45) days after the contract ends.
Failure to submit the invoice by this date could result in non-payment.

3. The vendor shall maintain sufficient documentation on file in their offices to support invoices and make
such documentation available for review by authorized NH DOE, Bureau of Adult Education and/or its
auditors, The Burcau of Adult Education will verify monthly reports through the Education Testing
System Administration Portal.

4. The Contractor shail adhere to all cash management policies and procedures stipulated in the body of this
agreement, end all other applicable State, and the DOE cash management regulations and policies,
including monthly accruat reporting.

. ¢y
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EXHIBIT D e
Coatractor Obligations

Contracts in excess of the simplified acquisition threshold (currently set at $250,000) must address
administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where the contractors violate or breach contract
terms, and provide for such sanctions and penaltics as appropriate. Reference:
2 C.F.R. §200.326 and 2 C.F.R. 200, Appendix 1, required contract clauscs.

The contractor acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. Chap. 18 {(Administrative Remedics for False Claims and
Statements) applies to the contractor’s actions pertaining to this contract.

The Contractor, certifics and affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement of its certification and
disclosure, if any. In addition, the Contractor understands. and agreces that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. §
3801 et seq., apply tothis certification and disclosure, if any.

Breach
A breach of the contract clauses sbove may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment
as a contractor and subcontractor as provided in 29 CF.R. §5.12.

Fraud and False Statements

The Contractor understands that, if the project which is the subject of this Contract is financed in whole or
in part by federal funds, that if the undersigned, the company that the Contractor TEPTESCRts, OF any
employee or agent thereof, knowingly makes any false statement, represcntation, report or claim as to the
character, quality, quantity, or cost of materiel used or to be used, or quantity or quelity work performed or
to be performed, or makes any false statement or representation of a material fact in any statement,
certificate, or report, the Contractor and any company that the Contractor represents may be subject to
prosccution under the provision of 18 USC §100) and §1020.

Environmental Protection

(This clause is applicable if this Contract exceeds $150,000. It applics to Federal-aid contracts on ty)

The Contractor is required to comply with afl applicable standards, orders or requirements issued under
Section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 1.5.C. 1857 (h), Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33

U.S.C. 1368), Executive Order 11738, and Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) regulations (40 CFR
Part 15) which prohibit the use under non‘cxempt.Federal contracts, grants or toans of facilitics included
on the EPA List of Violating Facilities. Violitionis shall be reported to the FHWA-and o the U.S. EPA
Assistant Administrator for Enforcement.

Procorcment of Recovered Materials

In accordance with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act (42 U.S.C. § 6962), State agencics and
agencics of a political subdivision of a statc that are using appropriated Federsi funds for procurement must
procure items designated in guidclines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR 247 that
contain the highest perceatage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory
level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the value-of the-quantity
gcquired in the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; must procure solid waste management services; in
a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and must have established an affirmative
procurement program for procurement of recovered malerials identified in the EPA guidelines,

- ———
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EXHIBITE

Federal Debarment and Suspension

a. By signature on this Contract, the Contractor centifies its compliance, and the compliance of its Sub-

Contractors, preseat or future, by stating that any person associated therewith in the capacity of
owner, partner, directos, officer, principal investor, project director, manager, auditor, or any
position of authority involving federal funds:

I. Is oot cumrently under suspension, dcbarment, voluntary exclusion, or determination of
ineligibitity by any Federal Agency: .

2 Does not have a proposed debarment pending;

J. Has not been suspended, debamred, volunterily excluded or determined ineligible by any
Federal Agency within the past three (3) years; and

4. Has not been indicted, convicted, or had a civil judgment rendered against the finn by a court
of competeat jurisdiction in any matter involving fraud or official misconduct within the past
thres (3) years.

. Where the Contractor oc its Sub-Contractor is unable to certify 1o the statement in Section
a.1. above, the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor shall be declared ineligible to enter into Contract or

participate in the project.

Whese the Contractor or Sub-Contractor is unable to certify to any of the statements as listed in
Sections 2.2, a3., or a4, sbove, the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor shall submit a written
explanation 1o the DOE. The certification or explanation shall be considered in connection with the
DOE's determination whether (o enter into Contract.

The Contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the DOE if, st any time, the
Contractor or its Sub-Contractor, leam that its Debarment angd Suspension certification
has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

Conlractor intisls_
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Exhibit F

Anti-Lobbying

The Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions of Section 319 of Public Law 10t-121,
Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees
to have the Contractor’s representative, exccute the followingCertification:

The Contractor certifies, by signing end submitting this contract, to the best of his/her knowledge and
belief, that;

[

No federal approprizated funds have been paid or shall be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned,
to any person for infiuencing or attempting to influence any officer or employee of any State or
Federsl Agency, 8 Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of »
member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federa! contract, the making of any
federal grant, the meking of eny federal boan, the entering into any cooperative agreement, and the
extansion, continuation, renewal amendment, or modification of any Federal contract grant, loan,

or cooperntive agreement,

If any funds ather than federally appropriated fusds have been paid or shall be paid to any person
for influeacing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federa) Agency, a Member
of Congress, and officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with this Federal contract, grant, lozn, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall
complete and submit the “Disclosure of Lobbying Activities” form in accordance with its
instructions Al v;whitehouse gov/ gravits/sflllin. pdf).

This certification is & material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was mede or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prereguisite lor making
and entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31 and U.S. Code. Any person
who fails to filo the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $§0,000
and rnot more than $100,000 for each such failure.

The Contractor also agrees, by signing this contract that it shalt require that the language of this
certification be included in subcontracts with all Sub-Contractor(s) and lower-tier Sub-Contractors
which exceed $100,000 and that all such Sub-Contractors and lower-tier Sub-Contraclors shall
certify and disclose accordingly.

The DOE shall keep the firm’s certification on file as part of its original contract. The Contractor
shall kecp individual certifications from all Sub-Contractors and lower-tier Sub- Contractors on
file. Certification shall be retained for three (3) years following completion and acceptance of any
given project.
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EXHIBIT G

Rights to Inventions Made Under a Coutract, Copy Rights and
Confideatiality Rights to Inveations Made Under a Contract or Agreement

Contracts or agreemenits for the performance of experimental, developmentsl, or research work

shall provide for the rights of the Fedérnl Govemnient and the recipient in any resilting invention in
accordance with'37 CFR part 401, “Righis to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Smaly
Business: Firms Undér Govérnment Granis, Contracts -and Cooperative Agrcements,” and any
implementing rogulatioss issued by the DOE.

Any, d_iscoiréryidr invention that arises dirring:the.course of. the contract ‘s‘ha_:_llj b_preporte@'i to:the DOE.

The Contractor. is requircd tbdisclt:_aqhv‘eﬁtiigns  promptly ‘to-the contracting officer (within 2 mnonths),
after the inveitor discloses it in writing to contractor personnel responsibic for patent mutters: The

awarding ngency shall determine how rights in the invention/discovery shall be allocated consistent with
"Government Patént Policy™ and Title 37 C.F.R. §40)..

Confidentiality o ‘

All Written and ofal information and materials disclosed or provided by the DOE under this agicement
-consliwtes Gﬁﬁﬁdcﬁlinlilﬂfomalinn;.r_egt_rd!ess‘off whether such information was provided 5¢fdre or
after tlic date on this agreement-or bow it was provided.

The Contractor and representatives thereof, acknowledge that by making use of, acquiring.or adding to
information about matters and data related to this agreement, which are confidential to the'DOE 'and its
partners, must remain the exclusive property of the DOE,

Confidential informalion means all data and information related to the business and operation of the DOE;

inclding but ot limited to all school and student data contained in NH Title:XV, Education, Chapters
-186-200.

Confidentia) information includes but is not limited to, student and schoot district data, revenue and cost
information; the source code for computer software and hardware products owned in part or.in whole by
the DOE, financial information, partner information(incttiding the:identity of DOE partiers). Contractor
and supplier information, (including the identity of DOE Contraciors and suppliers), and any information
that has been marked “confidential” or “proprictary”, or with the like designation. During the tenm of this
cootract the Contractor agrees to abide by such rules as may be adopted from time o time by the DOE to
maintain the security of all confidential information. The Contractor further-agrees that it will always

repard and 'prcgmr: as confidential information/dats-received during the performance of this contract,.

The Contrector, will not use; copy, make niotes, or usc excerpts of any confidential information, nor wild it
give, disclose, provide access to, or otherwise make available any confidential information to any person
not employed or contracted by the DOE or subcontracted with the Contractor.

Oweership of lutellectual Property

The DOE shall retain ownership of all source data and ather intellectuat property of the DOE provided
to the Contractor in order to complete the services of this agreement. As well the DOE will retain
copyright ownership for any and all materials, patents and intollectual property produced, including, but
not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protoools, guidelines, posters, or reports. The Contrector
shall not reprodice any materials for purposes other than use for the terms under the contrect without
prior written approval from.the DOE:
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CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

‘Tom Painchaud , do hereby certify that:

1. Tam aduly elected Officer of Sceond Start

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted by the Executive Committee
of the Board of Directors of the Agency duly held on January 22, 202)

RESOLVED:; That the xccutive Director of nd.Sta

Is hereby aunthorized on behalf of this A gexncy to enter into the said contract with the State of
New Hampshire Department of Education Bureau of Adult Education and 1o execute any and
all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revistons, or
modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate,

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and
effect as of the: 22* day of _Janiiary, 202! .

4. _ James B. Snodgrass ___ is the duly elected

of the Agency.

. Board President_
STATE OF NEW HAMPSH]RE

County of _Merrimack

The forgoing instrumeat was acknowledged before me this 22" day of January, 202t

By . _Tom Painchaud _, Board Présidént

LAURA E, BCARCELLO
Notary Publle - Now Hampsghire
Commission Expireg: My Commission Explres February 6, 2024

S e e e et - L



N .
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE i

01068/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE 5 ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLODER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFRRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. £XTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF tINSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: I Lhe cartliicate holdes is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions of bs endorsed.
U SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, sutject to the terms and conditions of the policy, cartatn policles may require an endorsament A statement on
this certificats does not confer Aghts to the ¢certiicats hokier In ey of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER 1 Eleanor Spnezzola
€ & § inauance Senvices LLC iy (603} 2032701 |"m._“"nor: "(803) 263.7188
21 Masdowtrook Lano g. Edeanorspinazzotagesisumnce.nol
PO Bex 7423 INSURETYT) AFFORDING COVERACE e e
Giord NH 03247-7425 | g o ; ANt Financial Services, Inc.
WIURCO - IMSURER B ;

Second pesymn e

17 Knigtet Street INEURFR D : - .

sunEnE ; e

Concord NH 0331 | mpmen e ;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 20N REVISION NUMBER:

THES 15 TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ADOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED., ROTWITHSTARIING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WATH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE 1SSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES OESCRIBED HEREN 15 SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF EUCH POLICIES. LIMITE SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIME,

TYPE OF eSURANCE Igm POLICY NUMBER nl% IMVOONYYY) LIMTE . -
3| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIMBRITY OCCURRENCE ¢ 1.000,000
Jeummsuce Docon | prewizs ey gy . |4 1.000.000
| g i | WED PP jary o parnevy | 3 20,000
Al SRR 120172020 | 12817202 [ ppnpene g aovouimy | ¢ 1,000,000
e AGGREQATE LIWT APPLIES PER: | CEWERM AQORFONTE 3 3.000,000
roucv || 0 Dux | PROOUCTS . coupr ago | & 3.000.000
i Ui’H_E_I: = : $
. AUTONODILE LIABRITY mﬁ. :m-mm 8 1,000,000 -
_% AT AUTO BOORY EMAINY (Por parsont) | 8
B SCHEOULED :
A __,Lmou:r ] 12312020 | 120172021 | BOOWY INAIRY (Per seciomt) | 8
| Aos s BRI o
'] AUTCE OmLY AT Oy | {Pye peciderg- 3
| Uningured motorist & 1,000,000
[>q weomniawe T Tocom | Eacnoccumnlacy — | 4 2000000
A [ | ocesaue —_ e 129172020 | 1200102029 | compoute 'y 000,000
pen. | > acresmon 3 10.000
'WORNERS COMPENRATION FER . [ O
AKD ERPLOYERS' LIABILITY o _J.umm | _[&
Y PROPRIETORPARTNERENCCUTIVG D T E.L EACH ACCIOENT 3
OF FICERMEMDER EXCLUDEC? L =
| martmery v iy (EL DISFASE . £A EMMLOVEE | §
un,mn.-ul —— —
SCAPTION OF QPERATIONS below EL DISEASE - POUCY LT 3
DELCREPTION OF OPERATIONS  LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 01, Addkionul Ravics Schacut, may o sitsehad if meve apace ia reguired)
_CERTIFICATE HOLDER- _CANCELLATION. ! .

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOR, NOTICE WILL RE DELVERED IN
NH of Dept of Education Buresu of Adutt Education ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

21 South Frsl 5t Sulte 20

AUTHORIED REPFRESENTATIVE

Concord NH 03301 i %‘J\% h‘v“‘gg‘a'-
1

© 1918-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (201600} Tha ACORD name and logo are repistersd marks of ACORD
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Issue Date 01/06/{202)
Gr_nni_tg State "em‘m This certificate is issued as a matter of information only
and Himan Service Trust and confers no rights upon the certificate bolder. This
certilicate does not amend, extend or alter the coverage

i’O Box - afforded by the policics below.
‘
Concord, NH o3302-4197
T Certificate Of Insurance
’ glie[:?.m:?: gs ii‘g::on Compamcs Affordlng Covéraj Be
. . COMPANY The Granite State Healthcare And Human
21 South Fmt Stl'tet, Sullc 20 LETTER A _ Services Self-Insured Gmup Trust
Concord, NH o33m TOMPANY
LETTER B Midwest Employers Casualty Corp.

. This policy is eﬂ'ect:ve on :.hlmzo 12:00 AM, and will expire on a/ifzo21 12:00 AM. This policy will automatically be .
renewed unless notified by either party by October 15t of any fund year.

L

COVERAG!-S

. ——— - - —— e [ ) - e e e

This ts to certify that the Workers' Compensation and Employer's l.labxlity Insurance has been ifssued to the insured

named above for the policy period Indicated, not withstanding any requirement, term or condition of any contract or
other document with respect to which this certificate may be issued or may pertain, the insurance afforded by the policies

_ described herein is subject to all the terms, exclusions and conditions of such policies.

lnmr‘:‘h“c,:!z!;rﬂer Policy ﬂj‘!"“.b"“.' ! E;:::"Zc Eﬁ?'[;iiyb“ .
Workers' ation E ) W{C Statutory Limits
M’.’Jﬂzﬂ! . om0 cooAM | 2 ooaM | L EachAccident £,000,000
T:::n;tn:n State Hults':;-'e TS 20 100 1aon oo A LEL Disease - Pol Limit |s1,000,000 -
tnsured Group Trust E.L. Disease - Each Erplsr. 000,000
cess Insurance, ' T we

; i ‘Workers' Compensation Statutory
: ! a/viozo o0 AM | 2/1/2021 n:00 AM
Blidwest, Exnployees Cesaalty Con{ * it Employer’s Liability £1,000,000

scription of ‘D Excluded Officer
" Covering operations of the insured during the policy term. Per NH Law, additional insured
and waiver of subrogation are not allowed on workers’ comp. COIs,
MEMBER CANCELLATION
Second Start Should any of the above described policies be canceled
17 Knight Street before the expiration date thereof, the issuing company will
Concord, NH o3301 endeavor to mail 30 days written notice to the certificate

holder named to the left, but fatlure to mail such notice shall
impose no obligation or liability of any kind upon the
company, its agents or representatives.

/%7 o1/06/2021

L
Authorized Representative Date
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